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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in operating budget hip hotels,
providing hotel consultancy services and hotel management services
in the PRC.

During the year under review, the world was still under threat of
economic recession. Even the European sovereign-debt crisis was
smoothed over some measures implemented by European Union, the
Western countries were still struggling in finding ways to steer their
economies back to the path of recovery. On the other hand, China is
gearing up for an investment spree, such as stimulating infrastructure
spending and domestic consumption, to counter a global slowdown
and shore up a faltering domestic economy. Against this backdrop,
corporations were generally cautious in expanding their scale of
operation.

For the past financial year, the Group recorded a consolidated loss of
HK$7,253,777 for the year ended 31 December 2013, as compared
with a net profit of HK$32,871,668 recorded for the same period of
last financial year. The consolidated loss for the year was mainly due
to the decrease of revenues generated from the provision of hotel
consultancy services in second half of year 2013.

The Group has been successfully transferred listing from the Growth
Enterprise Market to the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 August 2013. The Board
believes that the transfer of listing will enhance the profile of the
Company and increase the trading liquidity of the Shares. The Board
considers that the transfer of listing will be beneficial to the future growth
and business development of the Group as well as its financing flexibility.
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PROSPECT

The global economy still faces great challenges. While the momentum
for European and US economic recovery is yet to be restored, China
also announced a GDP growth target lower than before, implying
decelerated investments in certain spheres in China’s economy.
However, under The State Council’s 12th Five-Year Plan, China
identified seven strategic emerging industries to ensure a fast and stable
economic growth. Therefore, China is still playing a dominant role on
the world’s stage.

In the light of a likely economic downturn, the low cost hotel
accommodation sector will be relatively less affected hence the Group’s
revenue would be expected to remain stable or increase. In addition,
the overall income will be remained stable or improved upon completion
of five new leased and operating hotels in the PRC in the second half
of 2014. The Group will concentrate more on looking for different
locations and cooperate with different parties to expand our hotel
network in the coming years.

The Directors are always optimistic about the future development of
the Group’s business and will continue to implement the well-
established business strategies to explore business opportunities to
bring outstanding return to shareholders.

APPRECIATIONS

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our staff for
their dedication and professionalism in striving to achieve our goals.
Our sincere gratitude also goes to our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their support. | am proud to be working alongside
them to both achieve sustainable growth in our business and realize
the best returns for our shareholders.

Fong Man Kelvin
Chairman and Executive Director

28 March 2014
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Financial Highlights

MBEE

Year ended 31st December

Operating Performance BEEERT

Revenue Y&

Operating profit 2EE

Profit/{loss) attributable to: ATATERS

WA/ () :

Owners of Company RRREEA
Non-controlling interest SRR R

Net cash generated from/ BexBmE/
(used in) operating activities (FIR) B2 58

Earnings/(loss) per share — basic

BRAF/ (BR) - £X

Financial Position BEMRR

Borrowing EE

Net current assets/(iabilties) nBEE/ (BfE)FE
Shareholders’ equity RRER

Net assets per share BREEFE

Capital expenditure EARY

Key Ratios and Data FTEHERYE
Profit/{loss) margin ERER/ (B8)
Current ratio RELE

Return on equity BRI

BEt-A=t-HLEE
2012 2011 2010
—T-Cf 2% —2-%F
91,155,199 69,592,354 37,317,993
44,748,676 31,509,005 13,606,109
32,871,668 21,264,683 9,185,202
- - 364,329
28,756,392 (6,296,456) 15,055,682
HK$18.26 cents &1l HK$13.63 cents 5fll  HK$6.80 cents il
30,706,458 1,690,842 -
58,179,343 31,899,447 (8,676,685)
119,065,005 85,541,414 15,285,116
HK$66 cents A1l HK$55 cents &1l HK$11 cents 1l
15,564,155 10,933,888 171,694
36.06% 30.6% 25.6%
3.49 times f& 2.87 times & 0.35 times f&
27.6% 24.9% 62.5%
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in operating budget hip hotels
providing hotel consultancy services and hotel management services
in the PRC.

Hotel Operation

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has four
leased-and-operated hotels and three managed hotels under operation.
The Group closed down a hotel in Caitian in the PRC due to an early
termination of a lease contract by the landlord and recorded a
compensation of early termination from the landlord in 2013. During
the whole year of 2013, the Group has three new hotels under
constructions; there are another two new hotels starting development
in 2014, all of these hotels are expected to commence operation in
2014.

The Group continues to focus its strategy on delivering values to
budget-conscious hotel guests, such values included stylish design,
cleanliness, comfort, friendly service, geographical convenience and
safety. The Group develops its hotel through leasing part of existing
commercial buildings and converting them into hotel accommodations.

Future Development and Outlook for Hotel Operation

In August 2012, the Group confirmed a location in the North of Xiachong
Fairground, Daya Bay district, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC, to develop a new leased-and-operated hotel (the “Xiachong
Hotel”). The leasing period is ten years which started from September
2012. The renovation work for Xiachong Hotel has started in the fourth
quarter of 2012. The Xiachong Hotel was expected to finish
refurbishment in 2013 but due to the changing of the construction
and floor plan, the commencement of operation will be delayed until
the second half of 2014.

In July 2012, the Group confirmed a location in the Huicheng district,
Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, to develop a leased-
and-operated hotel (the “Huizhou Hotel”). The renovation work for
Huizhou Binjiang Hotel started in December 2012 and is expected
that the Huizhou Binjiang Hotel can commence operation in the second
half of 2014.
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In March 2012, the Group had identified two locations in Meilin, Futian
district and Shekou, Nanshan district respectively in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC to develop two leased-and-operated
hotels (the “Meilin Hotel” and the “Shekou Hotel” respectively).
However during the starting of construction and renovation, the Group
discovered that these two premises may not be the best locations to
operate the hotel business so the Group had changed the location
from Meilin and Shekou district to Changan (& % #8), Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC. The renovation work of both hotels in
Changan are expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2014.

In December 2012, the Group confirmed a location in Changping
district, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC to develop a
leased-and-operated hotel (the “Changping Hotel”). The Group
expects refurbishment work to be completed in June 2014 and the
Changping Hotel to commence operation within third quarter of 2014.

On 27 January 2014, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) with Vanli Holdings Company Limited (& 77 1%
fi% A& IR A 7)) (the “Developer”), a property developer in the PRC in
relation to a proposed business cooperation (the “Proposed Business
Cooperation”) in developing or operating not less than 50 budget
hotels in the wholesale markets, multi-functional commercial complexes
and shopping malls which are currently developed by the Developer in
the PRC.

The Group plans to continue to expand its network in the PRC, in
particular, the Guangdong Province in the next two to three years. The
Directors believe that the continuous growth of the demand of budget
boutique hotels in the PRC will provide business opportunities to the
Group to expand its businesses across these cities.

Hotel Consultancy Services

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had entered
into 7 hotel consultancy agreements with 2 investors for the provision
of hotel consultancy services. These investors are independent third
parties who are not connected with the Group other than entering into
the hotel consultancy agreements with the Group.

Outlook for Hotel Consultancy Services

The Group is currently implementing a branding strategy to refresh
and streamline its brand to better appeal to its target market segments
and to serve as a platform for its expansion into the consultancy
business. The Directors believe that the successful track record of the
Group’s hotels is one of the reasons that attract hotel investors.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has recorded a net loss attributable to owners for the year
ended 31 December 2013 of the Company approximately HK$7.3
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately HK$40.2
million or 122.9% compared to a net profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$32.9 million for year ended 31
December 2012 (the “Last Year”).

The net loss for the year was mainly due to the decrease in revenues
generated from the provision of hotel consultancy services in second
half of year 2013.

The reason of the decrease in revenues is the economic slowdown in
the PRC causes the investors to be more conservative in the hotel
accommodation sector and affected the revenue of the Group’s hotel
consultancy services.

Revenue

The Group reported a total revenue of approximately HK$58.0 million
(2012: approximately HK$91.2 million) and recorded a year-on-year
decrease of approximately HK$33.2 million or 36% from the Last Year.
Revenue mainly came from the hotel consultancy services of
approximately HK$24.6 million, representing approximately 42% of total
revenue. It decreased approximately 58% or HK$33.6 million from
approximately HK$58.2 million in the last year. The following table
shows the key information of each of the Group’s leased-and-operated
hotels for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Total BEr
Total available room nights @n KT R
Occupancy PNER:S
ARR (RMB)* THEE(ARE)*

RevPAR (RMB) # FHEREEWRA NRE)~

ARR: the average room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied
room nights

~ RevPAR: the average room revenue of all hotels divided by the total
available room nights

g EI)

REBRBE_Z—=F+_A=+—HIE
EERS AR BIER A (LB EIF 7,300,000
BT OBBE-_E-——F+-_A=+—HIE
E(TLEE])MARGHEE AREFEFD
32,900,000/ T 1% F ik > #740,200,0007% 7T -
RS A122.9% ©

AFEEFERIEANR T —=FT+FXKE
PR O 5 B AR 7% 2 Y e s D P B

mkaERDRERPEGERESHIREEY
BEEETERBEREE  IFETAKEN
o 5 AR AR TS U ©

A

RE B ERE B A #158,000,0008 T (ZE—=
F 1 #991,200,000870) + B EFEIRFRL
33,200,000/ 7T * JRilE A36% ° WA E£ZR®
ST TE BB R 76 49 524,600,0008 7T 1H#aU A
#942% - FZUW A B _EF [ 4958,200,0007%8 TT R
D #158%8% 33,600,000 7T T &K &5 A% E
BE T =N _"FT——F+-_A=+—H
IFFESHESERENEEER -

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-RA=1+—-BLEE

2012 % change
“T-—F  AHLED
146,749 (7.11%)
83.0% 6.87%
185.2 (0.81%)
153.7 5.99%

* FHEME - FTABE R ERAR AT
HEF B

£ THEMERERA  EEENTFHEREA
B AR HAE R 1 B
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Operating Costs

The total operating costs increased by HK$12.3 million, or
approximately 26.5%, from HK$46.4 million for the Last Year to
HK$58.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The following
table shows the total operating costs for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012:

Operating lease expenses EEMEMY
Depreciation of property, L ES
plant and equipment HETE
Employee benefit expenses EBERNFX
Utilities NEES
Other operating expenses HMgEmz

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its daily operations from internally
generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$19.6 million (2012:
approximately HK$27.9 million). Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt. The gearing
ratio for the year ended 31 December 2013 is nil (2012: 2.3%). The
Group was in net cash position as at 31 December 2013.

Significant Changes to Financial Position

The debtors’ turnover days for the financial year ended 31 December
2013 was 69 days (2012: 199 days). It decreased by 130 days as a
result of faster collection of trade debtor balance for the consultancy
services in 2013.

For hotel operations, the majority of the customers of the Group pay
by cash upon hotel room checkout. As a result, the trade debtors
balance was immaterial compared with the revenue. The Group expects
the customer payment pattern to be consistent in the future.

HE_ZT—=F+"A=+T—"HILFE  #K
ZRKAH EFE/46,400,0008 T 0 EFF
12,300,000/ 7T 58,700,000/ T * FHiE 4 A
265% HE_E—=ZFR_FT——F+_A
T —HIEFEMNREERAESTINT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=+-HLEE

HK$ % change
BT Ao LEE
2012
T4
11,584,821 27.94%
7,959,800 (7.16%)
9,845,335 70.92%
1,893,741 (4.97%)
15,122,826 18.13%
46,406,523 26.50%
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For hotel consultancy services, the trade debtors balance was HK$7.6
million as of 31 December 2013. Approximately HK$1.3 million of the
outstanding trade debtor balance for the consultancy services as at
31 December 2013 were settled in the first quarter of 2014
subsequently. The trade debtors balance is expected to be fully settled
in 2014 based on the repayment schedule as agreed with the customer.

For hotel management services, the payment term is quarterly
settlement after the end of every quarter. Approximately HK$0.6 million
of the outstanding trade debtors balance for the management services
as at 31 December 2013 were settled in the first quarter of 2014
subsequently. The Directors were confident on the recoverability of
the remaining outstanding trade debtors balances.

Capital Structure

In 2013, the Company has issued and allotted a total of 36,000,000
new ordinary shares as conversion shares at conversion price of
HK$0.85 each. Save for the issue of new ordinary shares by conversion
of convertible notes, there was no material change in the capital
structure of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013. The
total number of the issued shares of the Company was 216,500,001
as at 31 December 2013.

Details of the movements of the convertible notes during the year are
set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2013, the Group
had no significant exposure under foreign exchange contracts, interest,
currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

Significant Investment

For the year ended 31 December 2013, other than those investment
in construction of new hotels and joint ventures, there was no significant
investment made by the Group (2012: nil).

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no material
acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by
the Group.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets.
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Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total capital commitments of
approximately HK$38.2 million primarily related to the development
and construction of new leased-and-operated hotels in the PRC. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 128 employees (2012: 128) as at 31 December 2013.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee.

Operating Lease Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$130 million (2012: HK$148.5
million). The operating lease commitments are mainly related to the
rental of hotels premises for hotel operation.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2013.

Use of Proceeds in Fund Raising Activities

On 20 September 2012, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the Emperor Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to
procure, on a best effort basis, not less than six independent placees
to subscribe in cash for the Convertible Notes of up to an aggregate
principal amount of HK$30,600,000 with the conversion price at
HK$0.85 per conversion share (the “Placing”). The Placing was
completed on 12 October 2012. The proceeds raised would be applied
as general working capital and future business development for the
Group in the PRC.

The following is a summary of the use of proceeds for the amount of
HK$30,600,000 after the placing of the convertible notes.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following is a summary of the actual progress of the Group
compared with the business objectives set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”) for the period from
1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 (the “Review Period”).

Continue to expand the hotel consultancy business

Business objectives
for the Review Period

Entering into two hotel
consultancy agreements

Participating in tradeshows,
exhibitions and special
public relation activities
to identify potential hotel
investors

Actual operation
progress up to
31 December 2013

The Group has entered into 7 hotel
consultancy agreements during the
Review Period

The Group has joined several
exhibitions in the PRC

Expand the business by offered hotel management services

Business objectives
for the Review Period

Entering into two hotel
management agreements

Actual operation
progress up to
31 December 2013

The Group has discussed with several
investors to engage few hotel
management agreements

Continue to enhance the awareness of the brand name

Business objectives
for the Review Period

Launching marketing
campaign
Promoting the membership

program

Improving design quality

Actual operation
progress up to
31 December 2013

The Group has engaged several
travel agencies to promote the
Group’s hotels

Number of members has been
increased compared with year 2012

The Group has continued to recruit
designers to improve the hotel
design quality
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OUTLOOK

In the future, the Group shall continue to expand the number of leased-
and-operated hotels, and is also actively seeking for investment and
engaging in asset-light and cost effective business opportunities in
providing hotel consultancy services, as well as providing hotel
management services with a view to grow its brand recognition and
revenues to create value for the shareholders.

The Group will also seek for more business opportunities in different
segments to diversify the risk and cooperate with different parties to
expand our hotel network in the coming years.
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The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes
considerable effort to maintain high level of business ethics and
corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout
the year. The Board of the Company will keep reviewing and updating
such practices from time to time to ensure compliance with legal and
commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of
the Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with
their respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising
certain functions of the senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
dealings. The Company had made specific enquiry to all the directors
(the “Directors”) and the Directors have confirmed compliance with
this code of conduct throughout the period from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2013. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the
Company during this period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises seven Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman)
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy

Non-executive Director
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong
(Appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William
(Appointed on 4 December 2013)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
30 to 33. Other than Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, the chairman of the
Company, is a brother of Ms. Fong Nga Peggy, an Executive Director
of the Company, there are no family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs. The Board
is accountable to shareholders for the strategic development of the
Group with the goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value, while
balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Apart
from the regular board meetings of the year, the Board also meets on
other occasions when a Board-level decision on a particular matter is
required.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination
Committee meeting and general meeting during the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out in the following table:

EEENHE_T=F+-A=+—HLF
EHREEEEH BRZEQSE  FMHZ
By REZEERIANBRRAGZIH
BN

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
3.2 Ezee gnzaeg iMzeeg RtZE883 kRAg
(attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.
of megting held) of megting held) of megting held) of megting held) of megting held)
(HErE/ (HERE/ (HErE/ (HERE/ (HErE/
SgZaNy)  BheieNg)  EreZLNE)  BEEANE)  Efgdand)
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin Tk mn N/A TER N/A i N/A R 11
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy BERLT 1 NA MR NAMEH NA MR 17
Non-executive Director FHES
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, #[E-Cold Highham& &
Daniel Joannes Ludovicus 6/7 NA MR 17h 17 1h
Independent Non-executive Directors BU#ifEE
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry Engft 57 3/4 1/1 11 1/1
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie ERfEE 6/7 44 1/1 171 11
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong YRpks 1 1n NA MR NA MR NA MR
(appointed on 4 December 2013) (R-E-=F
+-AMREEA)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William Frostick Stephen Wiliam 4t = 1h 17 NA MR N/A T A N/A T A
(appointed on 4 December 2013) (R=5-=%
TZARAEEA)
Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny Ll 1/6 013 0/ 0/ 1/1
(resigned on 4 September 2013) (R=%-=%
NETBE)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum BRRRE 5/6 3/3 1" 11 1
(resigned on 4 December 2013) (W=E-=%
TZRANAET)

All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice. Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
that the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board
on compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access to
independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their
obligations as Directors of the Company, at the expense of the
Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records
S0 as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and
financial position of the Group through half yearly and annual results
announcements as well as the publication of timely announcements
of other matters as prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Director has made an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision of A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The post of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are separated to ensure a clear division between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility to manage the company’s business. The
separation ensures a balance of power and authority so that power is
not concentrated.

Mr. Fong Man Kelvin as a Chairman of the Group, plays a leading role
and is responsible for effective running of the Board and responsibility
of overall management, business development and implementation of
the Group’s strategy determined by the Board in achieving its overall
commercial objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Company did not have an officer with the title of chief executive
officer (“CEQ”). The CEO’s duties have been undertaken by the
members of the Board. The Company is in process of identifying
suitable candidate with appropriate experience as its chief executive
officer. The Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority of the Board. It currently comprises
two Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director (the “NED”) and
four Independent Non-executive Directors (The “INED(s)”), with INEDs
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representing 57% of the Board. Such a high percentage of INEDs in
the Board could ensure their views carry significant weight and it reflects
a strong independent element in the composition of the Board. At
present, the Board also believe that under the leadership of Mr. Fong
Man Kelvin as the Chairman, the Board’s decision could be made
effectively and it is beneficial to the management and development of
the Group’s businesses.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the period under review.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, all the Non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a specific
term but subject to termination in certain circumstance as stipulated
in the relevant service contracts. At each annual general meeting, one
third of the Directors for the time being (of if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one
third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
and has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate
governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) Developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;

(i) Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(iv)  Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v)  Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee was set up on 22 June 2011 to oversee
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2013.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises five members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Chairman)
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William

(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny

(resigned on 4 September 2013)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum

(resigned on 4 December 2013)

Majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual

remuneration of the member of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

RARERH  FMEEGmATHREREMR

B

BB EE (FE)
#/21=Cold Highham&} 5
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Frostick Stephen William?%t 4
(RZE—=FF+-ANBEZMT)
EEIE e
(RZZE—=FhLAEBEET)
BEREE
(RZZE—=F+ZAMAFT)

REDKBY BBIUIFATES -

HKS$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 71,52 1,000,000 7T

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

Changes in Directors’ emoluments

The salary of the Non-executive Director, namely Lord De Weyer of
Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry, Mr. Tam Kwok
Ming Banny and Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum, was increased by approximately
2.33% as compared with 2012.

The salary of the Executive Director, Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, included
the pension scheme contribution of HK$15,000 with effect from 1
January 2013 as compared with 2012.

The salary of all Directors, namely Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, Ms. Fong Nga
Peggy, Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus,
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry, Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie, Mr. Liu Cheng
Zhong and Mr. Frostick Stephen William, was increased by 10% with
effect from 1 April 2014 due to annual adjustment.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 22 June
2011 for making recommendations to the Board on appointment of
Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and
reviewing the board diversity policy.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board restructure
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company
pursuant to its terms of reference and the Board Diversity Policy.

During the year, the Company appointed two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong and Mr. Frostick
Stephen William. The Nomination Committee has reviewed their
backgrounds, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Nomination Committee considered current Board composition has
achieved the objective of the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Fong
Nga Peggy, Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie, Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong and Mr.
Frostick Stephen William shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises five members as at the date of
this report namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Chairman)
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William

(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny

(resigned on 4 September 2013)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum

(resigned on 4 December 2013)

Majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 22 June 2011
with written terms of reference that set out the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board. The audit committee
performs, amongst others, the following functions:

° Review of the financial information of the Group

° Review of the relationship with and the terms of appointment of
the external auditors

° Review of the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group,
reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes
recommendations to the Board. During the year under review, the Audit
Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2013, the financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, and the re-appointment of the
external auditors.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2013.

The Audit Committee comprises four members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Chairman)
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong

(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William

(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny

(resigned on 4 September 2013)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum

(resigned on 4 December 2013)

All the members are Independent Non-executive Directors (including
one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Company’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company (collectively “internal controls”).

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and
is fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls
within the Group to safeguard the interests of the Company’s
shareholders and the Group’s assets, and to manage risks. The Board
also acknowledges that no cost effective internal control system will
preclude all errors and irregularities. A system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of HK$2,414,200 to the external auditor. In which, the
amount of HK$2,129,000 is paid for the audit purpose and HK$285,200
is paid for non-audit propose.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standard are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Au Man Wai
(“Ms. Au”) as the Company Secretary. Its primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, Chairman of the
Company. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and for facilitating communications
among Directors as well as with shareholders and management. During
2013, Ms. Au undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training
to update her skills and knowledge.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports. The terms of reference of Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Renumeration Committee are revised on 1 November
2013 and the Memorandum and the Articles of Association of the
Company is updated on 23 March 2011.

The corporate website of the Company (www.legendstrategy.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating
to roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training records for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge of
their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where
there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against
them.
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The participation by individual directors in 2013 is recorded in the table ~ TRIFREFEZN T —=F 2 R EIFN :
below:

Attending Reading regulatory
Directors Seminar(s) updates
MEEERTE
=) R Y & 3 & R
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin FXEE O 0
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy =S Eegun O 0
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, #& 1= Cold Highham& &

Daniel Joannes Ludovicus O O
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry =R YET O O
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie = I ek T A O 0
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong BE A 0 g
Mr. Frostick Stephen William Frostick Stephen William4t & g O
SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION BERR2BE

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our ERHREZEBEERKRRRESBEAQRNF
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so thatthey ~ #B&#l - FRFREEMNBENBR N TERS S
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. RIRREER o

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its ~ ARABFRAZEBEBTE - UERRRLES
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These ~ BEXEEKAM - ZH BB T EAERRES
include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, A& * Fif « FIEBEE - A LK o BRI
announcements and circulars. Procedure for demanding a poll has R EARKANBEFEEHABEH EHAKE RS
been included in circulars accompanying notice convening a general  EBEHBEA WO AREAS T EEALER
meeting and such procedure has been read out by the chairman of 2% « AR FIMBREAFAG L AMREAS
the general meeting. The annual general meeting and other general AR AFHEREBEBENEEF S - NQFIER
meetings of the Company are primary forum for communication B FHERIHE CERAREREHEREAS
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company shall  FIRZHRZENHBER - FTRMENERE
provide shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s) R ABREHNER  UEREENSIZREHE
proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance with ~ ZRIELBRBEARTE - R-ZT—=F 872
the Listing Rules. The information provided shall be reasonably BEEFAS F FTEREHBELEE (BHEE
necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on  EEE)IRE2BUIREER °

the proposed resolution(s). At Annual General Meeting in 2013, a

separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each

separate issue, including re-election of Directors.

At the annual general meeting held on 25 June 2013 (the “2013 R -ZE—=F XA - +HAHBTHREEFK
AGM”"), the Executive Director and Chairman of the Board, the @ ([ZZE—=ZFREAFAE]) | H17EF
chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees REZEIF  BEZXZES  HFHEZES KR
and representatives from the auditor of the Company, HZEBE€TIFURKNARZHMEIRKES
PricewaterhouseCoopers, were present to attend to questions from  #EIEHF R KA LB AL LR E 2 12
shareholders. There was one general meeting held during the year - BE - ZT—=F+_-"A=+—HILFERN
ended 31 December 2013. HBIT—RRRKRE °
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Under Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. At the said meeting, all the Non-executive
Director and all the Independent Non-executive Directors were
presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding
of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down in Article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for
election as a Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given, and a notice in
writing signed by such person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office. The
minimum length of the period during which such notices are given
shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for lodgment of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by email: admin@legendstrategy.com,
fax: (852) 3563 5830, or mail to Room 13083, Tai Tung Building,
8 Fleming Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus
of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests.
The senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining,
enhancing and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and
quality.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (5 X), aged 51, is the chairman of the Company
and was appointed as an executive Director on 23 February 2011. He
is responsible for the daily operation of the Group and overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is also actively involved in
designing hotels, including both the leased-and-operated hotels and
hotels under the hotel consultancy agreements, for developing the
Group’s business. Mr. Fong holds the degree of Bachelor of Arts in
architecture from the University of Lincoln, the degree of Master of
Science in architecture from the University College London and the
degree of Master of Business Administration from the University of
Sheffield in the United Kingdom. Mr. Fong also obtained his
postgraduate diploma in architecture from the University College
London in the United Kingdom. Mr. Fong is the brother of Ms. Fong
Nga Peggy, the executive Director.

Ms. Fong Nga Peggy (2 2 [H), aged 49, was appointed as an
executive Director on 28 December 2012, is a sister of Mr. Fong Man
Kelvin, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the
Company. She was awarded a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (honours) in
Accountancy by The University of Kent at Canterbury, the United
Kingdom. Ms. Fong is a certified public accountant of lllinois, the United
States of America. Ms. Fong has over 19 years of finance and
accounting experience, working with international accounting firm.
From 2000 to 2006, she was appointed as the financial controller of
Office Maintenance Service Co. Ltd, a company engaged in engineering
and construction business and she was responsible for financial and
corporate management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus
(& 181=) (new salutation in 2014), aged 57, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director on 22 June 2011. Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham
obtained his diploma for the academic degree of licentiate in applied
economics at the Universitaire Faculteiten Sint-Ignatius Antwerpen in
Antwerp, Belgium and the dealing certificate from International Capital
Markets Association foundation, Montreux, Switzerland. Lord De Weyer
of Cold Highham worked for a premier European Bankassurance group
with assignments in Bahrain, Los Angeles and New York. He has also
worked in various positions for an industry owned cooperative SWIFT
Asia-Pacific where he held positions including Regional Head of sales,
Senior Manager Market infrastructures and Partner Relations, and
currently Global Client Director.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry (Z = &), aged 58, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June 2011. Dr. Wong
obtained his Master of Business Administration in international
management from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia
and Doctorate in Business Administration from the Bulacan State
University in the Republic of the Philippines. Dr. Wong also holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in theology from the Alliance Bible Seminary and a
Master’s Degree of Christian Ministry from the Alliance Bible Seminary.
Dr. Wong has also been the chairman of Happy Tree Social Services,
a charity organization, which aims at providing social services to the
disadvantaged minorities over the world.

Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie (&% /&), aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 28 December 2012. Mr. Wong
was awarded a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy by the City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Frankie Wong has over 16 years of finance
and accounting experience, including but not limited to, financial
management, corporate management and auditing, serving in
international accounting firm, manufacturing and retailing companies,
listed property development company, securities and futures brokerage
company and shipping company. He is currently the financial controller
of Shine Vision Investments Limited, a company engaged in wholesale
and retailing of eyewear products in the People’s Republic of China
and the South-east Asia, who is responsible for planning and directing
the finance and accounting functions, providing financial analysis and
budgets to the management and other corporate administrative
functions. He is also the Independent Non-executive Director of U
Banquet Group Holding Limited which is listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong (£l%& %), aged 45, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 4 December 2013. He is a
qualified lawyer of the People’s Republic of China with 13 years of
experience in handling commercial litigation. Mr. Liu obtained a degree
of Automation from Guangdong University of Technology (formerly
known as Guangdong Machinery College) in 1992. He is currently a
practicing lawyer at Guangdong HengHe Law Firm. He also serves as
a legal consultant of different enterprises, involving in the negotiations
for the Shenzhen Metro Project and Shenzhen Airport Project, etc. He
has 13 years of experience in commercial law, litigation and general
law.
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Mr. Frostick Stephen William, aged 64, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 4 December 2013. He is
currently the president and chief executive officer of the Compeer Group
(Macau) and Grey Eagle Group (Hong Kong). He is also the Executive
Director of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited and China Fortune
Investments (Holding) Limited which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Frostick
obtained a Juris Doctorate at Old College School of Law, Nevada,
United States in 1984, a Master of Public Administration and a Bachelor
of Science in Business Administration at the University of Nevada, Las
Vegas, United States in 1976 and 1974 respectively. Mr. Frostick has
over 36 years of experience in leading capacities in the State
Government of Nevada, United States, large corporations and
international consulting organizations. During his past employment with
KepnerTregoe Inc., Mr. Frostick was involved in the design,
development and led the implementation of “Team Concept” in Chrysler
Motors Inc. Mr. Frostick also participated in the negotiations with
respect to the labour agreements between the United Auto Workers
Union and Chrysler Motors Inc.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. He An Ying (fil & ), aged 45, is the administrative manager
and human resources manager of the Group. Ms. He joined the Group
in December 2005 and is responsible for overseeing the application of
various licences required for the operation of the Group, liaising with
the relevant government authorities for inspection, purchasing of
materials for the operation of the Group’s hotels. Ms. He completed
the ISO 9001: 2000 Internal Quality Auditor Course organised by Fz i
=E R R AR A A (Kaugdaxin Management Consulting Company
Limited®)

Mr. Zhang Guo Xing (& B £), aged 35, is the finance manager of
the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2007 and is responsible
for overseeing the finance department of the Group. Mr. Zhang studied
industrial management and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Hunan University in the PRC. He also obtained a qualification
certificate of Speciality and Technology in Accounting of intermediate
level issued by # # A R HFNE A F 50 (Ministry of Personnel”).

Ms. Li Yu Zhen (ZE¥), aged 51, is a senior district manager of the
Group. Ms. Li joined the Group in January 2006 and is responsible for
supervision of hotel operation, hotel room sales and customer relations.
Ms. Li obtained several awards in the hotel industry, including the
Advanced Worker Award (5t # T {E#) by the aforesaid companies,
for her outstanding performance.

Frostick Stephen William% 4% + 645% * =
E—=F T _RAUNBEZEABILIENTE
= + IR ACompeer Group (Macau) X Grey Eagle
Group (Hong Kong)Z £ E3RITEUARE, © RIS
REBBERZBERAGTEIZER EMrEHH
BEERERAFTRPREEREE TR AR
NE)ZHITEZE ° Frostickft £ 7 — L\ W FER
5B A EEZE M OId College School of LawZ
ERBTEMN  UHRR—NEARFE—NtE
VU 4F BR 45 35 B U H 4 p A A 2 i K2 QA HITIR
HET2U R TR EIRIEE T2  Frostickst &
TEEBEAEEMNBT « KA 2 K B EE R
A B30T BT EBAR - Frostickt AR
7 KepnerTregoe Inc. (B HfE - & 2 HEF

5 3% K 4B H#E 77 Chrysler Motors Inc. 2 [ B B i
] (Team Concept) ° Frostick 5t 4 JF & £ B 5
B 54 /T8 T A T & (United Auto Workers
Union)E2Chrysler Motors Inc.51 3 2 4 T #3559
ER I -

SREERE

fAFEELZL  455% 0 AASBEMITEREERA
HEREE - g tN—_ZEERF+_AmE
AEE BEEBEASEEEMESHETUE
R « ALYESTERE e RE M BN
eg  UREBASELEEEMEHNME -
X +TE B EEEEEBEMEGR AT
#71SO 9001: 2000 B[ & E 2 1% B R 18 ©

REIESELE - 3558 0 RAKERIFHERE - K
FER_ZZLFLAMBEAEE  BERE
AREBEOMBEE - SREELETETEERE - W
BTHEAEASTIREBS T BN - FIEPE
ARKAMBAZHMRENTREAEERMNE

BEBE-

(SIS

FE¥® LT 515 REAEENSREEL
B LN -_TETRF-ANBAEE &
BEEBAELE BEEFHEREFPBER -
HRKRREH  FLTE DRARREEER
M TIRESE THE -

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited #& Bl % & B 2 8 5 R 2 &



CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Kam Tik Lun (£ #1&), aged 38, joined the Company as the
company secretary in March 2011 and redesignated to Chief Financial
Officer on 4 September 2013. Mr. Kam is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kam obtained a
bachelor’s degree in commerce from the Concordia University, Canada,
a postgraduate diploma in international corporate and financial law
from the University of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom and a master
of laws in international corporate and financial law from the University
of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. Mr. Kam is an independent non-
executive director of China 3D Digital Entertainment Limited and
Unlimited Creativity Holdings Limited, both companies are listed on
GEM board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Au Man Wai (B{8{£), aged 31, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 4 September 2013 and is responsible
for the company secretarial functions of the Company. Ms. Au is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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The directors (the “Director”) have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operating budget hip hotels
and providing hotel consultancy and management services in the PRC.
There was no significant change in its activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 42 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at
31 December 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account plus
retained earnings, amounted to approximately HK$62.62 million.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 49 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers can be catergorised into two types, namely
hotel guests and hotel investors under the hotel consultancy and
management.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 49.1% (2012:
63.8%) of the total sales and the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 21.6% (2012: 16.3%) of total sales.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, cleaning products and laundry services. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 90.2% (2012: 86.8%) of the
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 30.5% (2012: 30.7%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the financial year
ended 31 December 2013.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans as at 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil). Details of borrowings of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group had capitalised interest of HK$3,349,903 during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December
2013 is set out on page 131 to 132 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin
Ms. Fong Nga Peggy

Non-executive Director:
Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry
Mr. Wong Sui Chi Frankie
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong
(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William
(appointed on 4 December 2013)
Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny
(resigned on 4 September 2013)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum
(resigned on 4 December 2013)

Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny and Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum have resigned as
Independent Non-executive Directors with effect from 4 September
2013 and 4 December 2013 respectively due to pursuance of their
own career development. Mr. Tam Kwok Ming Banny and Mr. Tsoi
Wing Sum have confirmed that they have no disagreement with the
Board and they are not aware of any matter regarding their resignations
that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to Mr.
Tam Kwok Ming Banny and Mr. Tsoi Wing Sum for their valuable
contributions to the Company during their tenure of office.

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 33 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All the Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) were appointed for a specific term of one to three
years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of
Associations or any other applicable laws whereby the directors shall
vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, were
as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

REQXARG (R HWFE

Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares Shareholding
=E ) R4 & B RET DL
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin Beneficial Owner 102,576,466 47.37%
TR EREAA

Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham, Beneficial Owner 10,382,655 4.79%

Daniel Joannes Ludovicus (Note 1)
& 21-Cold Highham&f & (Kt 35 1) EmEEA

Notes:

1. Ms. Makoto Nishimura is the spouse of Lord De Weyer of Cold Highham,
Daniel Joannes Ludovicus. Therefore, Ms. Makoto Nishimura is deemed
to be interested in the 10,382,655 Shares in which Lord De Weyer of
Cold Highham, Daniel Joannes Ludovicus is interested for the purpose
of the SFO.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein,
as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their associates had any interests and short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them has taken or deemed
to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant to Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons, not being Directors or Chief Executive of the
Company had, or were deemed to have, interests or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the
Group:

Long position in the Shares of the Company
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Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
£ g4 BB BEFDL
Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola (Note 1) Interest in controlled 14,000,000 6.46%
O+ (M5E1) corporation

R EHNEE 2 # S
VMS Investment Group Limited neﬂmal Owner 14,000,000 6.46%

Note:

1. VMS Investment Group Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. Mak Siu Hang
Viola (“Ms. Mak”) and Ms. Mak was therefore deemed to have an interest
in the Shares in which VMS Investment Group Limited was interested.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors are not aware of
any business or interest of the Directors, the management of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 128 employees.
Remunerations of the Group’s employees are determined in accordance
with the terms of government policies and by reference to market level
and the performance, qualifications and experience of employees.
Discretionary bonuses are paid to few employees as recognition of
and reward for their contribution to the corporate development. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement schemes, medical schemes,
unemployment insurance schemes and housing allowances.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under reviewed.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on
22 June 2011 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on 22 June
2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained
through their efforts and contributions.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
adoption of the Scheme, the principal terms of which were summarized
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).
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Number of share options

EREHA
Option Option Option Option
Exercise As at granted exercised lapsed cancelled Asat
Exercisable price 31 December during the during the during the during the 31 December
Category Date of grant Period per share 2012 period period period period 2013
H-g-zf REnE RER K-g-z%
t28 REARE i kAH MEREE T8
25l eul=p il SROEE =t-A NERE BhRE R WERE =t-A
Employees 21 February 2012 21 February 2012 o 1.3 900,000 - - - - 900,000
20 February 2014
B2 TE-TFCAZT-8 ZE-CECAC-8E
e =
Employees 8 October 2013 8 October 2013 to 822 - 8,000,000 (500,000) - - 7,500,000
7 Qctober 2015
8 ZE-FTAAR I G
“E-RF+ALH
900,000 8,000,000 (500,000 - - 8,400,000
PENSION SCHEMES EIREHE

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years. (2012: nil)

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers and a resolution for the re-
appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. PricewaterhouseCoopers was
the auditor of the Company since 13 July 2010.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company
at www.legendstrategy.com.

By order of the Board

Fong Man Kelvin

Chairman

28 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEN RS

42

B

pwe  Erski

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LEGEND STRATEGY
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 44 to 130, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SeZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEZ-=Ff+t-A=+—HLFE

2012
—T—_F
Note HK$
B 5 BT
Revenue U &5 5 91,155,199
Operating lease expenses ST ERT (11,584,821)
Depreciation of property, Y RERRETE
plant and equipment 15 (7,959,800)
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX 7 (9,845,335)
Utilities NGRS (1,893,741)
Other operating expenses Efh BT 6 (15,122 826)
Other income E bl A 8
Operating profit & E T 44,748,676
Finance income AE U A 9 76,231
Finance cost A K AR 9 (1,077,099)
Finance cost — net BEK A — FEE 9 (1,000,868)
Share of results of joint ventures HEERNRIEE (20,870)
(Loss)/profit before income tax FRFTE B AT (BE]) & A 43,726,938
Income tax expense FriS#ifA X 10 (10,855,270)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (ER) &R 32,871,668
Other comprehensive income: HZMHEWA :
Items that may be reclassified to  BJFEE# 7B E 82 2 THH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences & ¥5[E 5 =58 249,923
Fair value changes on available- AHEESHMEERFEZEH
for-sale financial assets 178,000
Total comprehensive FRGFE (BEB) WABLE
(loss)/income for the year 33,299,591
(Loss)/profit attributable to: T3] A £ FE{h (Bi8) B F :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ RN 32,871,668
Total comprehensive TIHALEMEEZE
(loss)/income attributable to:  (&18) UR A 4% :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ RN 33,299,591
(Loss)/earnings per share for FARRREE AENG
(loss)/profit attributable to (B18) HF N ER
the owners of the Company (E18) /&7
during the year
— Basic (Hong Kong cents) — EAR B 12 18.26
— Diluted (Hong Kong cents) — 5 OB 1) 12 17.97

The notes on pages 52 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated 2552 130 B KB i A A 4R A B 75 R R A9 485K
financial statements. o e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2013

R—_E—=%+=-_A=+—H
2012
—_F—=
Note HK$
B 5 BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB MR 15 36,746,467
Prepayments and deposits BNRAERES 16 24,450,000
Rental deposits HEZS 16 1,497,017
Prepaid operating lease B EEMRL 18 10,998,264
Interests in joint ventures REEB LR Z = 19 19,492,931
Deferred income tax assets BEIEFTIS T A E 28 1,452,223
94,636,902
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables JFEE M52 B 5 B L A fE s SR IE 16 52,481,410
Amounts due from joint ventures ~ FEU A& & A & k1B 35 —
Available-for-sale financial assets A HE& R E & 17 1,162,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEBY 20 27,880,476
81,523,886
Total assets EEHRRE 176,160,788
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves EAREEA
attributable to the BiEEARR #E
owners of the Company
Share capital & 2 21 1,800,001
Reserves s 23 117,265,004
Total equity fEmBEE 119,065,005

The notes on pages 52 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FE2E130A MM ERARER S M5 MR AKX

B o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2013

R—_E—=%+=-_A=+—H
2012
—E—=
Note HK$
M e BT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Provision for asset retirement REEEERREE 24 3,457,087
Finance lease liabilities MEHEARF 25 889,153
Convertible notes — debt AR EE — EEILD
component 27 29,405,000
33,751,240
Current liabilities REBAE
Provision for asset retirement REEE EEIREME 24 -
Trade and other payables JE 11 BR R N EL i B {5 308 26 9,064,789
Current income tax liabilities EHMSHAasE 13,035,449
Finance lease liabilities MmEHREEARE 25 412,305
Financial derivatives SRITETAR 27 832,000
23,344,543
Total liabilities EEHAHE 57,095,783
Total equity and liabilities EakaERE 176,160,788
Net current assets BRBEE 58,179,343
Total assets less EEHABRRBERE
current liabilities 152,816,245

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 130 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 and were signed

on its behalf.

Fong Man Kelvin

HRFA4Z10ENGRAMBRREN T —
ME=ZA-+\BEEESHE  YHTIE
ERREE -

Fong Nga Peggy

B TER
Director Director
= EFE

FE2E130A MM ERARER S M5 MR AKX

B o

The notes on pages 52 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B 35 AR 5 R

As at 31 Deoember 2013
R-—F—=%#+-A=+—AH

2012
—_=EF=—=
Note HK$
M e BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S IEENGIPA E 29 37,507,647
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H th jE 5k I8 16 794,902
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UF B A &l FIE 29 29,152,653
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJft HE S g E F‘ 17 1,162,000
31,109,555
Total assets EEHRRE 68,617,202
EQUITY ER
Capital and reserves KATEEA
attributable to the BLEREFE
owners of the Company
Share capital [ 21 1,800,001
Reserves EE 23 35,767,301
Total equity AR 37,567,302
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Convertible notes — AR EE — EEILD
debt component 27 29,405,000
29,405,000
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Statement of Financial Position

B 35 AR 5 R

As at 31 December 2013
R—_E—=%+=-_A=+—H

2012
—E—=
Note HK$
M e BT
Current liabilities i h=R i

Amount due to a subsidiary BN —REH B AR KB 29 636,900
Accruals FEETIEE 26 176,000
Financial derivatives SRITET AR 27 832,000
1,644,900
Total liabilities BEHHE 31,049,900
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEEE 68,617,202
Net current assets BRBEE 29,464,655

Total assets less current EEABRARBAERE
liabilities 66,972,302

The financial statements on pages 44 to 130 were approved by the  F44F130E NI EREREN —Z—MFE=H

Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf. “tN\HEESeHE  TH NIEERERE
=,
Fong Man Kelvin Fong Nga Peggy
B X REE
Director Director
0 EE

The notes on pages 52 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated 2552 130 B HI B i A A 4R A B 75 R % A9 485K
financial statements. o e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T=F+-_A=+—HILLFE
Attributable to owners
of the Company

KABEEAEN
Share Share
capital premium Reserves Total
[N 13 % B e Fo ]
(Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 23)
(FzE21) (HF7E23) (BF7E23)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 7S TT BT BT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=-ZB--—F-—B—H#&H% 1,800,001 38,030,244 45,711,169 85,541,414
Profit for the year F W A - — 32,871,668 32,871,668
Other comprehensive income: Hin 2 EBA :
Currency translation differences EWIEY =8 - = 249,923 249,923
Fair value changes on available- A ESHEE
for-sale financial assets ANFEEH = — 178,000 178,000
Total comprehensive income FRiFERAHEE
for the year — — 38,299,591 33,299,591
Total contributions by and EERERZRRANARATF
distributions to owners of BREALEHAER
the company recognised 4G 2R
directly in equity
Employee share option benefit EE B RERT - . 224,000 224,000
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-ZE—-F
+-A=+—H#&&# 1,800,001 38,030,244 79,234,760 119,065,005
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-ZE-—=F—-A—H&RK
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive income: HE2EKA :
Currency translation differences EHEN =%
Fair value changes on available- A EeREE
for-sale financial assets ANEEES
Total comprehensive loss FRGEERAE
for the year
Total contributions by and EEREZREIN
distributions to owners of AARBEEALELER
the company recognised 4L 2R
directly in equity
Conversion of convertible notes RBBRER
Employee share option benefit EEBRERT
Exercise of share options by RETHERE
employee
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-ZB-—=%
+tZA=1+—-B#&&%
The notes on pages 52 to 130 are an integral part of these FEE52E1B30E MM E AR A B IS WmaER M A
consolidated financial statements. 7o o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRTRER

50

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEZ-=Ff+t-A=+—HLFE

Note
Bt
Cash flows from RETEHEENRESRE
operating activities
Cash generated from operations A& & E£IE & 31
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEX R EBEFEH

PRC income tax paid

E X E PS5

Net cash generated from
operating activities

RETHEENHEFR

Cash flows from
investing activities

Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Increase in loan to joint ventures
Increase in prepayment for
property, plant and equipment
Decrease/(increase) in deposit
for an acquisition of business

REFDELENRERE

RHTEERRZEREM
WE - BENMEREZ

B FRIAIE BN

Wi R 2 iRe i, Ofd)

Interest received B U F 8
Proceeds from disposal of LEHEESCHEE
available-for-sale financial F 1S 5E
assets
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHIESRMEE
financial assets
Net cash used in investing activities 1% & & &) At IR & F 58
Cash flows from RETHEENRERE

financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of
convertible notes

Proceed from conversion of
share options

Repayment of finance lease
liabilities

Interest paid for convertible notes

BITA R Z RS

IR FEE 27
AR AT 1S 508
MEMEAFEZENKE

B BRRERZHE

Net cash generated from
financing activities

BMEEBASNIREIFHE

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited #1/& [ F & [H42 jg 5 R 2 5

34,065,763
(1,709,007)
(3,600,364)

28,756,392

(15,509,830)
(10,010,000)

(9,450,000)

(10,000,000)
3,713

(984,000)

(45,950,117)

29,682,000

(470,388)

(335,000)

28,876,612



—ZE——
Note HK$
Bt BT
Net (decrease)/increase in ReRBELZEY
cash and cash equivalents (R 2) /HEhnR 48 11,682,887
Cash and cash equivalents FHHNRERREEEY
at beginning of the year 16,150,556
Exchange gains on cash and ReRAZBYIE R KR
cash equivalents 47,033
Cash and cash equivalents FRONBESRRASEEY
at end of the year 20 27,880,476

The notes on pages 52 to 130 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FE2E130A MM ERARER S M5 MR AKX

B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRR M

52

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the budget hotel operations
and provision of hotel consultancy and management services in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23
February 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 15 July 2011. On 21 August 2013, the Company transferred
the listing of its shares from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets and financial derivatives, which are
carried at fair value.
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Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands °
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$7,254,000
(2012: net profit of HK$32,872,000). As at 31
December 2013, the Group’s net current assets and
cash and cash equivalents balance were
approximately HK$445,000 (2012: HK$58,179,000)
and HK$19,586,000 (2012: HK$27,880,000),
respectively. The decrease was mainly attributable to
payments for construction costs made for new budget
hotels planned to be opened in the future. In addition,
as at 31 December 2013, the Group has total
operating lease and capital commitments of
approximately HK$168,228,000, out of which
approximately HK$25,733,000 would require cash
outflows in the coming year.

2 FESHHERXBE»®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE (B)
2.1.1 Going concern (Continued) 2.1.1 FFHEARESEE (B)

54

In order to improve the Group’s operating
performance and alleviate its liquidity risk,
management is implementing measures to control
costs and contain capital expenditures. Further
investments in hotel operations will be made only
when the Group has sufficient financial resources after
meeting its day-to-day working capital and other
capital commitment requirements. Moreover, in March
2014, the Group has obtained a 15-month loan facility
amounting to HK$45,000,000 from a financial
institution. Up to the approval date of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
drawn down HK$20,000,000 from this loan facility to
finance its working capital. Such borrowings bear an
interest rate of 12% per annum; and will be repayable
in June 2015. Moreover, the borrowings are
unsecured notwithstanding the fact that the lender
can request for collaterals as it thinks fit from time to
time. With the availability of additional funding from
the loan facility and the anticipated positive cash flows
from the hotel operations, the directors expect that
these will improve the Group’s cash flows and financial
position in the coming twelve months.

The Company’s directors have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections. The cash flow projections cover
a period of twelve months from the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements. In the
opinion of the directors, based on these cash flow
projections and in light of the above, the Group will
have sufficient financial resources in the coming
twelve months to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@  New, revised and amended standards effective
in 2013

The Group has adopted the following new,
revised and amended standards that have been
issued and are effective for the financial periods
commencing on 1 January 2013:

Amendment to
HKAS 1

Amendment to
HKAS 19

HKAS 27
(revised 2011)

HKAS 28
(revised 2011)

Amendment to
HKFRS 1

Amendment to
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendment to
HKFRSs 10,
11 and 12

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Annual improvements

2011

Financial statements
presentation regarding
other comprehensive
income

Employee benefits
Separate financial statements
Associates and joint ventures
First time adoption on
government loans
Financial instruments:
Disclosures on asset
and liability offsetting

Consolidated financial
statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other
entities

Fair value measurement

Transition guidance

Stripping costs in the
production phase of
a surface mine

Annual improvements in the
2009-2011 financial
reporting cycle

The adoption of the amended standards did not
have material effect on how the results and
financial positions for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and

presented.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New, revised and amended standards and
interpretations to existing standards that have
been published but are not yet effective

The following new, revised and amended
standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are
mandatory for the financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014, but the Group has
not early adopted them:

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments:
Presentation on asset
and liability offsetting’

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets on
recoverable amount disclosures'
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Recognition

and measurement-novation
of derivatives'

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Consolidation for investment
and HKAS 27 (Amendment) entities'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts*

Annual improvements 2012 Annual improvements to HKFRS
2010-2012 cycle?

Annual improvements 2013 Annual improvements to HKFRS
2011-2013 cycle?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 2 Members' shares in co-operative
entities and similar instruments?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New, revised and amended standards and
interpretations to existing standards that have
been published but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Note:

U Effective for financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for financial periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014

& Effective for financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015

& Effective for financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

2 Effective date to be determined

The Group will apply these new, revised and
amended standards and interpretations to
existing standards in the period of initial
application. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the adoption of these new, revised
and amended standards and interpretations to
existing standards and is not yet in a position
to state whether they would have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 HEARAT
2.2.1 Consolidation 2.2.1 8HER

58

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)

POLICIES (continued)
HEZH

2.3 Joint arrangements 2.3

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM”). The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Group’s executive directors who make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
cost-net’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the income statement within ‘other
income’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

— all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

62

(c) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using straight-line method to allocate their cost, less their
residual values, if any, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
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Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired MEH PR
term of lease and 7 years K Nt
R
BE
Furniture and fixtures 5 years R REE k2
Office equipment 5 years MRERE ks
Motor vehicles 5 years E "E

The asset’s useful lives and residual values are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvement
stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Cost includes the costs of leasehold improvements and
capitalised interest charges arising from borrowings used
to finance these assets during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time the relevant assets are completed
and are available for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in the preceding
paragraphs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.1 Classification (Continued)

(@)

LLoans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “amounts due from joint ventures/
subsidiaries” and “cash and cash equivalents”
in the statements of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
income statement as “other income”.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments are
not reversed through profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.
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Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 213 REeRBEELEEY
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash RekBFeEEVEEFRASK

equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at IRITRANGTR - R HRERER
call with banks. £5) o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Share capital 2.14 A

68

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)

POLICIES (continued)
217 BEEAE

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Convertible notes

The Company issued Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”")
denominated convertible notes (the “convertible notes”)
which can be converted into ordinary shares of the
Company and redeemed under certain circumstances. If
the conversion of the convertible notes will not result in
delivering a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments in exchange for a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset, the convertible notes contract will
be separated into two component elements: a financial
derivative component consisting of the embedded options
and a debt component consisting of the straight debt
element of the convertible notes.

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value of the
financial derivatives component is calculated using a
valuation technique. The financial derivative component is
carried at fair value on the consolidated statement of
financial position with any subsequent changes in fair value
being charged or credited to profit or loss in the period
when the change occurs. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to debt component of the convertible notes,
net of transaction costs, and is recorded as a liability. The
debt component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Convertible notes (Continued) 218 AT AR EE (&)

70

Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate to the debt
component through the maturity date.

If the convertible notes are converted, the carrying amounts
of the corresponding financial derivative and debt
components are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
convertible notes are redeemed, any difference between
the amount paid and the carrying amounts of the
corresponding financial derivative and debt components is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the group companies operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures. Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal, the temporary difference is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension schemes.
The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered
funds. The Group has defined contribution plans in
the PRC and Hong Kong.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Bonus plans
The Group recognises a provision where contractually

obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FEESTBERBE®

2.21 Share-based payments 221 IR AER 2R

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
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(for example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Share-based payments (Continued) 221 Ut AEB 2R (&)

74

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the services rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below.

(a) Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room
rental is recognised when the services are rendered.

(b)  Provision of hotel consultancy services

Revenue in respect of provision of hotel consultancy
service is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the end of the
reporting period. The stage of completion of each
transaction is determined based on the proportion of
costs incurred at the end of the reporting period
compared to the estimated total costs of the
transaction. The outcome of a transaction can be
estimated reliably when (a) the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably; (b) it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group; (c) the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date can be measured
reliably and (d) the costs incurred for the transaction
and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

(c) Hotel management income

Hotel management income from operating a hotel is
recognised when the services are rendered.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEHBFEHE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued) 223 Wz (&)

76

(d)  Membership fee income

The fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the membership.

(e)  Rental income on sub-leased hotel premise
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(e) JHESTHYERHEZ WA

Rental income in respect of rental of a sub-leased BREBEESHEMENES KA
hotel premise is recognised on a straight-line basis M10FHE AR E R AW
over a lease period of 10 years. R o

(f)  Interest income h  FEMA

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

2.24 Customer loyalty programmes

The Group operates a loyalty programme where customers
accumulate points to exchange free nights staying in the
hotels operated by the Group. Sale of hotel rooms that
result in membership points are accounted for as a
separately identifiable component of the sales transaction(s)
in which they are granted or sold (the “initial sale”). The fair
value of the consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the components, i.e.
the hotel rooms sold and the membership points granted.
The fair value of the membership points is estimated by
reference to the benefits (i.e. free extra night for staying)
that the customer would obtain when redeeming the
membership points and the expected future redemption
rate. The estimate on expected redemption rate is based
on statistical analysis of past customer behaviour. The
Group reviews the loyalty programme on a regular basis,
unused and expired membership points would be removed
from the programme. Revenue from the membership points
is deferred and is recognised when the points are redeemed
and the amount of revenue is recognised based on the
number of points redeemed relative to the total number
expected to be redeemed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHHERXBE»®

2.25 Leases 225 E

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents, trade debtors, deposits, other
receivables and amounts due form joint ventures and
subsidiaries. Management has policies in place and
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no
concentration of credit risk in view of its large number
of customers. It has policies in place to ensure that
sale of rooms to corporate customers are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Sales
to walk-in customers are made via credit cards or
cash.

In respect of provision of hotel consultancy services,
the Group has a concentration of credit risk in view
of that all the trade debtors arose from 1 customer
(2012: 5 customers). The Group requests progress
payments from customers in accordance with the
milestones of the hotel consultancy agreements.

Cash and bank deposits are mainly placed in
domestic banks with good credit ratings. Rental
deposits are mainly paid to seven (2012: eight)
domestic private entities who are currently leasing the
office and hotel premises to the Group. Other
receivables primarily represent the amounts due from
third and related parties which have long business
relationship with the Group. Taking into consideration
settlements subsequent to year end, management
does not consider there is recoverability issue.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through issuance of convertible
notes or other facilities. As at 31 December 20183,
the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
HK$19,586,536 (2012: HK$27,880,476) (Note 20)
and trade receivables of HK$10,295,474 (2012:
HK$48,276,139) (Note 16) that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

To manage the liquidity risk, management monitors
rolling forecasts of cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally
generated cash flows from operations, equity or debt
funding or advances from shareholders. Please also
refer to Note 2.1.1 for management’s considerations
of liquidity risk management.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXERER

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBEKREZE (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) TEEZER (&)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the date of statements of financial
position of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which is based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on current
rates at the date of statements of financial position)
and the earliest date the Group is required to pay:

FRELARE Y TSR
AERIIRRRE 2 A
WEIMER - HIVRAMAG
RE S E (REERT O
£ (5 A7) BSHRE B
ZRAREHEZFBX )
AR BAL 2 & A
5

Within ~ Between  Between
1 year or 1and 2 2and5 More than
on demand years years 5 years Total
—ER
FRER -FEWME MEEREE BBIE @
HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Group by |
At 31 December 2013 RZ8-Z%
TZA=t-H
Trade and other payables Y EE
Finance lease liabilities BETREAE
At 31 December 2012 R=B-=f
+ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables R RE MR 5,169,552 = = — 5,169,552
Finance lease liabilities REREER 470208 408,664 535,347 - 1414219
Convertible notes — debt component  AIARZE — BEHS 1,530,000 35,462,460 = — 36,992,460
7,169,760 35,871,124 535,347 — 43,576,231
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBERERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBEKREZE (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) TEEZER (&)
Within  Between  Between
1 year or 1and 2 2and5 More than
on demand years years 5 years Total
-/
FHEER —FEWME WMERIE HBIE ag
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT BT
Company KAH
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=F
+ZA=1+-H
Amount due to a subsidiary fEf—FMBARZE
Accruals et B
At 31 December 2012 R-8-Zf%
tZA=+-H
Amount due to a subsidiary s —HNEA %K 636,900 = = - 636,900
Convertible notes - debt component THAREE — A 1,530,000 35,462,460 - — 36,992,460
2,166,900 35,462,460 - — 37,629,360
(c) Foreign exchange risk (c) SNEE Rz
The Group operates mainly in the PRC and HK with AEEEERPERBEBLE
most of the transactions, assets and liabilities ¥% 0 BRASBEWB AR A
denominated and settled in functional currencies of TR IAARE ( U\E
the group companies other than certain trade B ) EHEIN - HRFA RS
receivables of a group subsidiary denominated in BERBEAEER 7E’JIJ‘JHK
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) while its functional currency is HK$. BEGHEREE - MEANGEE
Management considers that the foreign exchange risk WRABTT - ARARKER BT
is not significant as RMB has been appreciating EENEEFE—ELEA &
against HK$ in the past years. BERLBINER DK o
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIEEfz

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for certain bank deposits, convertible
notes and finance lease obligations. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. Management
considers the interest rate risk is minimal since the
interest income from bank deposits is insignificant and
the interest rate for convertible notes and finance lease
obligations is fixed.

RETRITER - ATBRERERE
MRt EHEERIN - AEEL
EBEAGREERAE WA
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REBD DR TH T BB
2 o HRIRTTIFRZFERE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders, to support the Group’s stability and growth;
to earn a margin commensurate with the level of business
and market risks in the Group’s operation and to maintain
a net cash position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or dispose of assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-
current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.

During 2013, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2012, was to maintain the gearing ratio of less than
20%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012
were as follows:

3

R RER &)

3.2

EXmpmER

AEEERNEENTIRABRRRRE
AEBREELSE  UBBERKRR
PR B ¥R S % AN 5 B A R 0E B3E
£ RBUERKELLHOEE R
BRRAFEERNBEREFE - Wik
FIREFEMR -

REFIABERNGEE  AREH
SRBEN TEREROBRSBER - %
I e B B ERIEET -

RTERITEFEMAR K KK
EREBEEEARBRILERKEEER -
ZHERBBEFERIABRERA
- AEFREDREELR (BRER
BMBARKAN RBRIEREE
BEDNRESIREEEBYFE-&
RBRIRG A MBI R AR [
= B EFEE -

R-ZZT—=F AKENRAEE—
T-_FHRA - MBEEAFBHE
RIFAE20%AT - RZT—=ZFR
—E-F+A=+—HNEE
BELERMT

Total borrowings (Note 25 and 27) & E #8758 (i #£ 25 & 27)
B BERBEEEEY

Less: cash and cash equivalents

30,706,458

(Note 20) (KI5E 20) (27,880,476)
Net (cash)/debt F R AR’ 2,825,982
Total equity HEZS 4R R 119,065,005
Total capital NGRS 121,890,987
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE 2.32%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2013 resulted
primarily from the conversion of the convertible notes.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXERBRERE®

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AEEME

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TERFAABEEDTIEAFEAR

fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have Wem T HE - NEERNERT

been defined as follows: N

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e [REEAESBEEERMSL
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). RIFRE CREEHAR) (F—4) °

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level s RE-—LMBIEMNREIN B
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either EXAEN Ei BER) 3k
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived M (AR ERE L) BRME
from prices) (level 2). BAE(EZR) -

e Inputs for the assets or liability that are note based o  WIRBRAERMIZEERETE
on observable market date (that is unobservable HEENBERAE BT
inputs) (level 3). BRgAB) (BE=R) °

In 2013, equity securities classified as available-for-sales RZE—=F 2ERAHLES

financial assets were disposed at market price and the BEEMNRAFERZMBER D

convertible notes were fully converted. As at 31 December T MARREEDEREER o

2013, there were no assets and liabilities that are measured RZE—=F+=-A=+—8 ' #

at fair value. EEENBEERATEE °

The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREJINAREER-_Z—Z—F+=

liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December A=+t—HERAFEFEZEER

2012. BfE -

Level 1 Level 3 Total
B B “zE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BIT BTT

Assets BE

Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE

Equity securities N 1,162,000 - 1,162,000

Liabilities afE

Financial derivatives TRIVTAETER - 832,000 832,000
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBERERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 ATEMEF (&)
(a)  Financial instruments in level 1 (@ ZE—HKez@ITA

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active EEEMSRR SN EFIA
markets is based on quoted market prices at the Z AV ERAEE BT SR
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if B - INRZBEAURS
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from HRERRR G - X5 -

an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing KRN ITXER - RERS
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices MESRERERES LR
represent actual and regularly occurring market ELRERAEKTETCEER
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted NERGWER E23 - Zm
market price used for financial assets held by the SRR RGBT o NEH
Group is the current did price. These instruments FrffemEEFRNTSRE
included in level 1 comprise primarily HKEx equity BRRTBEE - F—HRITAFE
classified as available-for-sale. BREAIBEANHEEZRES

BT LT RAES -
(b)  Financial instruments in level 3 b) FE=HKz@TA
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TEREVWEHE-FT——FK=
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012 T—=F+-_A=+—HIHF
and 2013. EZHE=MI A -

Financial

derivatives

SRTETAR

HK$

Vo

1 January 2012 —T——_%—H—H —
Issuance of convertible notes BT R IR 832,000

31 December 2012 -+ -A=+—H 832,000
Conversion of convertible notes Hga g =g (832,000)

31 December 2013

—E—=fF+-A=+—H —
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group has significant amount of property, plant and
equipment. The Group is required to estimate the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to ascertain
the amount of depreciation charges for each reporting
period.

Useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase of these
assets after considering business developments and the
Group'’s strategies. The Group performs annual reviews to
assess the appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected adverse
changes in circumstances or events, including declines in
projected operating results and negative industry or
economic trends. The Group extends or shortens the useful
lives and/or makes impairment provisions according to the
results of the review.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may be not recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on fair
value less costs to sell calculations or market valuations.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
affect the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial position and
results of the operations.

Impairment of trade and other receivable

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
and other debtors and the current market condition, and
requires the use of judgments and estimates. Management
reassesses the provision at the end of each reporting
period.

Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis,
the present value of the obligations which arise from future
reinstatement of leased hotel premises upon the end of
lease terms. To establish the present value of the asset
retirement obligations, estimates and judgement are applied
in determining these future cash flows and the discount
rate. Management estimates the future cash flows based
on certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs
based on quotations.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current income tax and deferred income tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 2.23,
the Group uses the percentage of completion method to
determine the appropriate revenues to be recognised from
provision of hotel consultancy services. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of estimated total costs of completion. When
the outcome of the transaction cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable to be recoverable.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, derivatives arising from
convertible notes) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group appointed an independent valuer
to assess the fair value of derivatives. The Group also uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been identified
collectively as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

Management regularly reviews the operating results from a service
category perspective. The reportable operating segments derive
their revenue primarily from the hotel operations and provision of
hotel consultancy services. The sales of hotel membership cards,
hotel management services income and rental income on a sub-
leased premise are included in the hotel operation segment.

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of operating profit but exclude
certain unallocated corporate income and expenses.

DEER

BREERRERWRARRNTES -
HITEZENARBENAR RS - AT
KAWL DEER - BREERREDRE

HEREBELEDH

EEBURG D BARKTHENEEE
o AI2MEE DR E T EREEE
EE MR R ERB MRS o BIE SR
& EEEERBOBARSENERS
WATSFH NBIEREZ D REA -

EEEREERN (TEEETRAIED
EWARRAX) EEFELED BOR
3 o
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHWER #)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable FAREFEERREREHN ] 2R B
segments for the year is as follows: B D EBERIE S AT ¢
Provision
of hotel
Hotel consultancy
operations services Total
REEE
EIEEE & R AR 3% wE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
For the year ended BE-_ZT—=F
31 December 2013 +tZA=+—BLEE
Segment revenue 73 #BUA
Segment results D EB A
Depreciation of property, Y BENEETE
plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid A S E#E

operating lease

Provision/(reversal of FEUE 5 RFORE

provision) for impairment of B (BB HE)

trade debtors
For the year ended BE-_Z2—_—F

31 December 2012 +=-BA=+—HILEE
Segment revenue 7 EBUA 32,969,007 58,186,192 91,155,199
Segment results D EB LR 1,427,400 47,197,843 48,625,243
Depreciation of property, M BERZETE

plant and equipment 7,073,876 885,924 7,959,800
Amortisation of prepaid T 48 70 S 5

operating lease 850,590 — 850,590
Provision for impairment FEWE 5 BR TR BB

of trade debtors — 1,500,000 1,500,000
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) )

A reconciliation of segment results to profit before income tax is
provided as follows:

DEER (&)
4> 8P 2 % BRI BT 1SR A% 1L 1 BR B0 2

2012
—ET-—F

HK$

BT
Segment results D EBFELE 48,625,243
Unallocated corporate expenses, RO E M FRE ()

net (Note) (3,876,567)

Finance income BE WA 76,231
Finance cost & A (1,077,099)
Share of results of joint ventures DEEEBERRFEE (20,870)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETIS B AT (B518) i F 43,726,938
Note: PREE -

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly represent share-based payment
expenses, auditor’s remuneration and legal and professional fee.

All revenue was derived from external customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
Revenue of HK$21,382,489 (2012: HK$57,203,556) is derived
from two (2012: five) external customers for the year ended 31
December 2013. The revenue is attributable to the provision of
hotel consultancy services.

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets
located in Hong Kong and the PRC were HK$2,953,656 (2012:
HK$13,956,495) and HK$147,743,296 (2012: HK$79,228,184),
respectively.

AR RIS = 248 AR R EHE 2 (55
X BB RERREERER -

REE-ZT—=FR=_F——-F+=-A=
+—HILFE  FrER=EIREFEEE
BHINEEE - HE-_T—=F+_A=
+—BIEFE - W2521,382,4897 7T (—
T — —4F : 57,203,556/870) KA ME (=
T——F  AR)INREF o WIHEKEIR
B R AE 5 BB RIS ATE ©

MREBRTPBENIERSEELE T
BRELEHIBEE) H 5l 52,953,656
BT (T ——4% : 13,956,495% 7T)
$147,743,2968 L (=T — —4F :
79,228,184 1) ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2ER ©)

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows: FrE EB R AE ST
2012
—E—_F
HK$
PETT
Hotel consultancy services B 5 A S AR 7S 58,186,192
Sales from hotel operations — BEEBENHER —
hotel room rental, hotel management BIEEEAS  BEERRG
services income and WARERERS
conference room rental 28,463,775
Management fee income EEERA 1,709,628
Rental income on a sub-leased premise DAY ER S WA 2,456,044
Sales of hotel membership cards HIESEREE 339,560
91,155,199
In 2012, corporate expenses were allocated between reported RZE—=F  ERIDBREBESERS
segments based on the proportion of revenues contributed from B AR B R A B R EL IR 2 3R 5 2B
each reported segment to the Group. During the year ended 31 A - BE_T—=F+-_FA=+—H1F
December 2013, management considered certain expenses FE EEERAEETHIEZIARS
should be presented as unallocated corporate expenses to better Fefb 3RS - AR i R = 2 3R 5 20HY
reflect the performance of each reported segment. Accordingly, = o AL - LD HER B EHAER
the comparative segment information has been updated to REERE5) B -

conform with the current year presentation.
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6 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 6 HMEEMX
Other operating expenses consisted of the following: HmE BRI BEATSE
2012
=E==
HKS
7T
Marketing and promotion MiZHEREREEER 1,931,143
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment B E 5 EFORE (BE) B
of trade debtors 1,500,000
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B 1,320,000
Consumables and laundries JEREm REKRE R 1,131,943
Entertainment XETEENE 961,446
Sales commission SHEMS 633,210
Property management fee MEEBRE 597,914
Telephone and communication BELBAER 436,330
Repairs and maintenance B MIRE 248,804
Bank charges RITFEE 147,069
Office supplies FE/NE 137,231
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BB MK
plant, and equipment (Note) Z B8 () =
Legal and professional fee FERBEXER 1,172,567
Other taxes and surcharges H MR RENE 3,123,894
Others HAth 1,781,275
15,122,826
Note: B &
During the year, as a result of early termination of a lease contract by the FR - ARETRAKERY - NEBEBER—
landlord, the Group closed down one operating budget hotel and wrote MEEFMNEE  ALEMHEEEEA
off property, plant and equipment of HK$985,024 in this regard. The 985,024 BT 2% - MEKRZE - ~EEE
Group has recorded a compensation of early termination of HK$877,303 W B 3 E AR AT AR L 2 A9 2 B (8877,308 %8 7T
(Note 8) from the landlord. Moreover, the Group relocated a hotel under (Fft7E8) ° Bhoh » AEE G —HEER TS
construction to a new site and therefore the related construction in BRI - A - RERIIRYIBRAIERIE
progress of HK$1,253,290 was written off. IR 251,253,290 7T B A i 8Y o
7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 7 EEEANEZ (BREESEHFM)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

Salaries, wages and allowances Fe -~ TENER 8,223,260
Pension obligations RIKNSET 1,069,861
Share-based payment expenses ARG A AT 2 MR 224,000
Other benefits H A 127 328,214

9,845,335
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OTHER INCOME

H g A

2012
—_F—=
HKS
BT
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale EEAHEESREE 2 W
financial assets -
Compensation for early termination of AR IR Z fE
lease (Note 6) (=9 =
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 Yz 58 =
Others Hih =
FINANCE COST — NET 9 ®mERAK R
2012
—_F—=
HKS
BT
Finance income: BEWA
— Interest income on non-current rental — & $5 AKX AN 5T & Y
deposits carried at amortised cost JERBHEERES T EWA 72,518
— Bank interest income — RITH BUA 3,713
76,231
Finance cost: BB A
— Finance cost on asset retirement — WHEEFEEERER R E KA
obligations (160,421)
— Finance cost on finance lease liabilites — B & & & & H) gl & A (81,002)
— Finance cost on convertible notes — A BmREEREKA (890,000)
(1,131,423)
Less: amount capitalised as B BN AEETIRE
construction in progress (Note 15) Z &% (f:E15)
(1,077,099)
Finance cost — net BE RN AR — FEE (1,000,868)
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FREBLFE X
2012
=E==
HK$
B TT
Current income tax EVERFR 1575
— Hong Kong profits tax — BBNER 5,963,117
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMSR 4,645,651
Deferred income tax (Note 28) EIEFTSH (I 7E 28) 346,502
10,855,270
The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and AEERNHASHSRABEZHSHEY
British Virgin Islands. MTIE o
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% RAFEAR  BEBNEREHE16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits of the year. (ZF— = : 16.5%) BT ER TR A
{E S -
The PRC corporate income tax is provided at the rate of 25% RAREER - PR EMEHETE25%
(2012: 25%) for the year. (ZT—ZF : 25%) R B -
The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs NER BIRR TS Al A B A 2 PTS Bl i
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted AARSEETKE RRIFTEZHREER
tax rate of the home country of the companies comprising the KA E s EBwmEBEcERAT ¢
Group as follows:
2012
—EF——
HKS
o
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISELAT (B518) m F 43,726,938
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEBHBERMNENIZERDN
applicable to profits in the respective R E TR IE
countries 8,757,154
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes /= 7] 1% #) 5 2 1,425,156
Tax loss not recognised AERNFIAEE 669,516
Tax effect of share of results of DEEERNRERENBMBZE
joint ventures 3,444
Income tax expense FriS i > 10,855,270
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FRCEEZHFMBRIIMT

11 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a)

The emoluments of the directors during the year are set

out below:
Salaries,
allowances
and  Retirement
benefits benefit
Fee in kind contributions Total
4 2HR
ik EWERN  BARSHEX am
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ-Z-=%
TZA=t+-H
LFE
Executive director: HITES:
Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman) X (FF)
Fong Nga Peggy RER
Non-executive director: FHTES:
De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus Joannes FEL
Independent non-executive director: BUFRTES
Wong Sui Chi Frankie Elnh
Tam Kwok Ming Banny (Note a) B GREY
Tsoi Wing Sum (Note b) 28 (Fizto)
Wong Hak Kun Jerry End

Frostick Stephen William (Note b)

Frostick Stephen William

(FizED)
Liu Cheng Zhong (Note b) 2R (i)
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-E2--%
+ZA=t+-H
ILEE
Executive director: HiTEZ:
Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman) X (£F) = 820,000 27,000 847,000
Wong William (Note ¢ 2 (3k0) - 87,356 2,000 89,356
Fong Nga Peggy (Note c) TER (ftztc) - = = =
Non-executive director: FRITES
De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus Joannes HEC 86,000 = = 86,000
Independent non-executive director: BUERTES
Wong Sui Chi Frankie (Note c) Einfa (F & c) - = = =
Tam Kwok Ming Banny FEH 86,000 - - 86,000
Tsoi Wing Sum BER 86,000 = = 86,000
Wong Hak Kun Jerry Eng 86,000 - - 86,000
344,000 907,356 29,000 1,280,356
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11 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11 EEHFHN »

96

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Note:

a: On 4 September 2013, Tam Kwok Ming Banny resigned as
independent non-executive director of the Group.

b: On 4 December 2013, Tsoi Wing Sum resigned as
independent non-executive director. On the same date,
Frostick Stephen William and Liu Cheng Zhong were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Group.

© On 28 December 2012, William Wong resigned as Chief
Executive. On the same date, Fong Nga Peggy and Wong
Sui Chi Frankie were appointed as executive director and
independent non-executive director of the Group,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no director
received any emolument from the Group as an inducement
to join or leave the Group or compensation for loss of office,
no director waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments
(2012: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include one (2012: one) director and
four (2012: four) senior executives. The emoluments of the
one (2012: one) director are reflected in the analysis
presented above.

The emoluments payable to the remaining four (2012: four)
individuals during the year are as follows:

(a)

(b)

EEHM @)
W

a RIZE-—=FNLANA  FEEHA
B ERREBIIFNTES ©

b: RZT—=F+-AWH &
REEBIIFNTES - FAA -
Frostick Stephen William 5 21| # &
BEZERAEBBIERNTE
=

c. RZIE——F+=-_A=+/N\H"
HREHMTITHRAH RAA XK
ERRFEHBRDANEZTAEASE
ERTEENBYIEATES -

BE_Z—=Ft+t-A=1t—Hit
FE  BEFEHENAEEREEEM
MEERMAKBERARE 2 2
SIERBERME  TEREFREX
ERERERTAME (CFE—=F:
&) -

ZTEREHFAL

RAFEE  AEBRERSHAL
BE—R(CE——F: —R)ESE
RO (ZE——F : 1% aRE
BEAL  —R(ZE—=F: —
RB)EEZMER EXEN 20+
SR o

RAFE  BABRTER(CTE—=
FOB)ALTHMEIT

e - TENER
BREER

Salaries, wages and allowances
Pension obligations
Share-based payment expenses

VAR A7 A 21 2 15 SR B X

1,296,096
143,370
44,800

1,484,266
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11 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

11 EFHMHN @
(b) EEBREHFAL @)

HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000

Z %0 21,000,000/ 7T
1,000,0013% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/
loss attributable to the equity owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

NFUTBEEANZEE ¢

2012

Nurbor o

individuals

A

s

s

12 SRER
(@ EX

BRERBNDRARBERTHE
AR, BER AFABE EIT
BB MEFHHEE -

equity owners of the Company
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

(Loss)/profit attributable to the RNABERIEE ARMN (B1B) /%F)
=)

BITE B I I8

32,871,668

180,000,001

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)

FREAR(BR) /8T (B)

18.26

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has two categories of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: convertible notes and share
options. The convertible notes are assumed to have been
converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted
to eliminate the interest expenses less the tax effect. For
the share options, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

(b) #F

SREERNBBRHBRABEING
TR TR - BERMAE AR
AEEHE N EARD KB BRMmT
o ARRBEMBEEEEN 2 &
B ATRRRE R B E o AT
BREBEE RREWRAE B - am
T BR A B LA SE BB SOR R 7%
FE-WBRENS  BRED
BATAMARTT B 2 R
Z & BERFE AR R FE CAKR
RAEBN 22 FFETEREE)
BAZEME#E - Bt EMEK
0 BB 7Y B R AR B A 1T (2 1
BRITZMMNEBIELLE -
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BRERN @)
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #HE &)
Dilutive loss per share for the year ended 31 December AR ERERRES BN ETEE
2013 is the same as the basic loss per share as the TRRERAIBBREESHERENR
conversion of potential dilutive ordinary shares in relation EBlEEKNRBESE  HEE-Z
to the share options and convertible notes would have an —=F+_A=+—HLFEZS
anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share. g B E TR EREIEER -
2012
—E—_F
Earnings ZH
Profit attributable to owners AKRAREE AR
of the Company 32,871,668
Interest expenses on convertible notes AR EE 2B 890,000
Profit used to determine diluted earnings RN ESRES R T 25T
per share 33,761,668
Weighted average number of BEBITE AR 2 T 15
ordinary shares in issue 180,000,001
Adjustments for: BTFIIEE FAE
— Assumed conversion of convertible notes — BRERABRERE iR 7,890,411
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AEEREERT
for diluted earnings per share T BRI T 187,890,412
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) &A% #5E 2 | (BB L) 17.97
There was no dilutive effect arose from share options on HE-_FT——F+-_A=+—HL
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 FE - BRAERTERERESA
since all outstanding share options were anti-dilutive. EREENE  WERESERA
RN EEE 2 o
13 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS 13 ARAEEABIEER
OF THE COMPANY
Loss attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt with in KRR RHE AEILEBEL 56,213,035
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of T(ZZF—1F 1,456,134 70) * A
approximately HK$6,213,035 (2012: HK$1,456,134). REHBEHREANERE -
14 DIVIDENDS 14 BE
No dividends had been paid or declared by the Company during RAERE AN BRI HEREMRE
the year (2012: Nil). ZE—ZF f|E) o
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y¥ - MERKRE

Group
r5E
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office Motor Construction
ments fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HENELEE GAREE BAZRE RE  ERIRE b
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2012 R-2-——%-A-H
Cost KA 44,043,126 7,862,527  1,009799 2,850,346 — 55,765,798
Accumulated depreciation 25T E (19,506,398)  (6,458,267) (610,513)  (195,675) - (26,770,859)
Net book amount EmFE 24,536,728 1,404,260 399,286 2,664,671 — 28,994,945
Year ended 31 December 2012 HEZZ--F
+=RA=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount ERmFE 24,536,728 1,404,260 399,286 2,654,671 — 28,994,945
Additions RE 193,714 64,577 45,012 — 15,260,852 15,564,155
Depreciation charge EEH (6,291,862) (888,741) (208,781) (570,416) - (7,959,800)
Exchange differences ERES 134,814 8,459 2,338 1,556 - 147,167
Reclassification ENAE = (705) 705 = = =
Closing net book amount FREEFE 18,573,394 587,850 238,660 2,085,811 15,260,852 36,746,467
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-_%
t-A=t-H
Cost A 44,484,874 7,972,215 1,061,332 2,861,960 15,260,852 71,631,233
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (25911,480)  (7,384,365)  (822,772)  (766,149) —  (34,884,766)
Net book amount REFE 18,573,394 587,850 238,560 2,085,811 15,260,852 36,746,467
Year ended 31 December 2013 BEZT—=%F
TZA=+-H
LER
Opening net book amount ENRERE
Additions RE
Disposals (Note 31) & (FEst)
Depreciation charge HEER
Exchange differences EAES
Reclassification ENnE
Closing net book amount EREERE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=F
T-A=t-H
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation 2iiTE
Net book amount FHFE
During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs FRN - AEBEREEREEERNER
amounting to HK$3,349,903 (2012: HK$54,324) (Note 9) on Bk 783,349,903/ 7T (T — —4F : 54,324
qualifying assets. o) (MFEE9) ©
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group leases a motor vehicle under non-cancellable finance
leases (Note 25). The lease term is 5 years. Motor vehicle include
the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance

15 Y% - BEKRZE @)

AEBRBE A BIHEREROBER &
5 (ffsE25) - MEARSF - AEEERE
HMAREREROERNTERFBEATE

leases: B
Group
KEH
2012
—E—=
HK$
BT
Cost — capitalised finance leases A —BEALzMERE 1,905,158
Accumulated depreciation 2irinE (429,058)
Net book amount BRHEFE 1,476,100

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16 FEUR AR K H Ath B W SR IR

Group Company
rEH AN

Trade debtors FEUE SRR
Less: W
Provision for impairment FEULER 3R

of trade receivables Ve RIEREL]

Prepayments, deposits and ~ FEHFIE « & &
other receivables Ko Ho Al fE e zkIE

Less: Vo
Rental deposits HEZe
Prepayment for property, Y -~ BER
plant and equipment B2 TR
Deposit for an acquisition WK 2 &e
Prepaid operating lease AR EERLY
— non-current portion — ERBEH D
(Note 18) (PFfzE18)
Current portion MBI

52,481,410

49,776,139

(1,500,000)
48,276,139

41,150,552 794,902

89,426,691 794,902

(1,497,017)

(14,450,000)
(10,000,000)

(10,998,264)

794,902
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are analysed as

16 BEWERAR K EMEWFRIE @)

BENFR - Re MEMRYRIAEZ ST

follows: ™
Group Company
KEH KA T
Deposits B
Rental deposits MEZE 1,497,017
Deposit for an acquisition g v
(Note a) %% (KisEa) 10,000,000 —
11,497,017 —
Prepayments B RIE
Property, plant and equipment #7% - BiE &

(Note b) =& (Fiakb) 14,450,000 —
Prepaid operating lease TEfT & ERA 11,848,854 —
Others Hfb 918,684
Total prepayments TEFRIE 4258 27,217,538 —
Other receivables H{h WK IE 2,435,997 794,902

Total prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

BNRE - BE
Ko HoAth FE U
IR

41,150,552 794,902

Note a: In October 2012, the Company entered into a non-legally B sEa RZT—ZF+A ' ARAREE]
binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) for —TEEBORN ZHRRES
acquiring 100% of the issued share capital of a target 8 ([FRmgEmE]) - NABBI
company, which is principally engaged in the business of BEEZEARZ100%E TR -
interior decoration and design. The consideration for this BEEAGEEREFTENREBERR
possible acquisition is approximately HK$60 million. FTER c e BSEHEZRE
According to the MOU, the Group paid HK$10 million 49 460,000,0007% T ° 1B IERE
deposit to the target company. Pursuant to the board #H=t  AEEREBEZEAREN
meeting held on 21 February 2013, the Group decided not 10,000,000 LR E ° BIER =
to proceed with the acquisition and the deposit has been T—=F-_AZ+—HBEIZE
collected by the Group in March 2013. EREE  AEEFERKIEZEK

BEE MAKEER=Z—=
F=AREEZESE °
Note b: These represented payments for construction costs for new Mo eED : TR MBI AR R A

office premise and budget hotels planned to be opened in

the future.

YA ELE R VR R AR AN AT Y

A ©
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16 FEWEBRFR R EHEMEWFRIE &)

102

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to
corporate customers with an appropriate credit history on credit
terms of 30 days. For hotel consultancy services, the Group offers
credit terms to external customers of 60 days upon acceptance
of services by the customers. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group has made provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$634,115 (2012: HK$1,500,000). Trade receivables of
HK$10,185,469 (2012: HK$47,257,408) were past due but not
impaired. Management considered that no recoverability problem
on these trade balances as a result of subsequent settlement
received up to the date of this report and the agreement of the
revised repayment schedule with certain trade debtors. The aging
analysis of these trade debtors is as follows:

AEBHEELBREEZAEARRIR
SHE - NEBARESBEEREND
¥RFRE=TRANBEREHEREE
H o BUBIEBERRBE M E © AEERIND
BEEXRBERAZERPRESTRH
FEH N—ZT—=F+-A=+—0H "
AREEBE B fEH FEUBR FUR E B 1#634,115
BT (ZZT——4 : 1,500,000/87C) ° fE
U BR 510,185,469 L (Z T — — 4 :
47,257,408 70) B HAE W ERE - &
BERE  BREZEAFRE BHE WS
MREKE SR TEEZRPRMEETE
HErEliEi i - R EE S E8nmIKE
WERRE - ZERKE ZERZERIT
R

Group

KEH
2012

===

HKS
BT
Neither past due nor impaired fm180 B T AR E 1,018,731
0-30 days past due B HI0Z= 30K 6,457,730
31-60 days past due #EAZ1 260K 6,961,124
61-90 days past due BHEIG1 290K 4,505,744
Over 90 days past due #81 B A 3B O0K 29,332,810
Past due but not impaired B 8 B I R E 47,257,408
48,276,139

The credit quality of trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparties’ settlement pattern.

BRI ERENEEEZERNEEE
EA2ERX HEFHOBEERCET A
fl e

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of e ERRA LS ERKRIENRE
each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not B - NEEWESZSEBRTA EAER
hold any collateral over these balances. m °
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved) 16 FEWBRR R HEWRTIE &)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables 7RG B FE U AR SR R EL A FE MR IE 2 BRI (B
are denominated in the following currencies: A3 B EHE -

Group Company

AEE AT

RMB AR 53,146,209
HK$ BT 36,280,482 794,902
89,426,691 794,902
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade debtors are JEWE ZRFRERE 2 ZBIT -
as follows:
Group
EE
2012
—F—=
HK$
BT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H -
Provision for impairment of e W AR FOR B B 15
trade receivable 1,500,000
Receivables written off during RE R & T AT U E /Y
the year as uncollectible FEWFRIR =
Reversal of provision for impairment ¢ 5] e Y BR FORU (B B 1
of trade receivable —
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8” 1,500,000
The reversal of provision for impaired debtors has been included BB B B U AR R 8 B B 5T A ER 2R R
in “other operating expenses” in the income statement (Note 6). m[HmEERE] (fE6) -
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not JFEE U AR R % Lt W R TR 2 B At B8 ISP
contain impaired assets. BEEREERE °
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17

18

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

17

At 1 January Rn—HA—H
Additions NE
Disposal of financial assets HETHMEE

Net gain transferred to equity (Note 23) BB = HEZS v Wk F 58

(P 7E23)

At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H

AHESRERE
Group and Company
AEBRAAR
2012
===

HK$

7T

984,000

178,000

1,162,000

Available-for-sale financial assets represent equity securities listed
in Hong Kong which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group transferred fair value gain of HK$178,000 (2012: Nil)
previously recognised in available-for-sale security reserve in
equity to the income statement upon the disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets in 2013.

PREPAID OPERATING LEASE

As at 31 December 2013, the balance primarily represented the
non-current portion of the operating lease payment paid to an
independent third party in respect of the rental of a hotel premise
in the PRC for a lease term of 15 years till 30 June 2026.

18

AT S R BN L BT
SHEZ RAES -

R-Z—=%F AEERLEAHLES
BB ERAS < BT s A A] (B R SR
RN A TFERE178,0008 T (&
——F D) EREERER -

BNEEHESE

RZB—=F+"A=+—8  &Z&HxE
ZERNTENBEENEEE HHEE
TECRFEAAZTHLETRAF) A&
BYFE=T XN ERENRZIEENH

B -
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REELQRIZHEZ

On 22 December 2011, the Group entered into a Joint Venture RZE——F+=A=+=H A&EH
Agreements (“Agreements”) with an independent third party in — BB E=F K REEERRIRIL
relation to the formation of two joint ventures. —IE&EHE ([ZmEl) -
Group
2013 2012
—E-—=5F —E—_F

HK$ HK$

BT BT
As at 1 January n—A—H 19,492,931 9,503,801
Share of result DIGEE
— Loss for the period (Note) — HNEE (W) (3,731,953) (20,870)
— Other comprehensive income — HEEKA (33,843) -
Loans granted to joint ventures BTEERRIZER 9,705,600 10,010,000
As at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 25,432,735 19,492,931
Note: 5T -

SERRNEEE= EEm LB ©
EJEFﬁWFfﬁﬁ + W B Y B SR

The joint ventures operate two hotels in Sanya City, Hainan Province. e
One of them has started operations during the year and operating loss H
was recorded in the early stage of operations. FE

The details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures are as follows: REBREERRIZERMFIBOT ¢
Attributable
Place of Date of Issued equity
Name of company incorporation  incorporation share capital interest Principal activity
ACEL &F M 3t 2 it B 5 ERTRAR EhEBRAER FEEHR
Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong 7 October 2011 2 ordinary shares 60% Investment holding and
Waterfront Tourism of HK$1 each hotel operation
Limited
(“Waterfront”)
SERREEKFRE BB —E——%1+AtH BR1BTH2E REERRBIEEE
BRAR ([KE]) AR
Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong 7 October 2011 2 ordinary shares 60% Investment holding and
Jinhua Tourism of HK$1 each hotel operation
Limited (“Jinhua”)
SDRREERERE  AE “E——%1+AtH BR1UATH2E REERRBEEE
BRAR([87E]) TER
The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted ZEEEBERRBLART - ERMHIEM
market price available for their shares. HRME -
The cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures includes REBRRZIELMHEXABIERLRF
shareholder’s loans of HK$31,732,600 (2012: HK$22,027,000) I iﬁﬁf‘%@ﬂiﬁﬁ# TAERRNKREE
to joint ventures for establishment of two hotels in the PRC. The 31,732,600 L (=& — —F :
Group will not demand for the repayment of the shareholder’s 22,027,000/ 7T) ° Z!»‘%@i’liﬁgiﬁﬁ 53
loans, and accordingly, these loans are treated as capital injection ZRFREF - AZEERFRAREE
by the Group into joint ventures. These loans are denominated HEBERRZEE ° aZ%féf%’( LA TTET
in HK$, unsecured and non-interest bearing. B AEEAREE -
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
joint ventures

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities relating to
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Sanya
Welcomeinn Waterfront Tourism Limited and Sanya Welcomeinn
Jinhua Tourism Limited which is accounted for using the equity

method.

Summarised statement of financial position

Waterfront
KE

19 REEQFAIZERE @)
HABEARERZRERSAEE
B R WA B A B2 A 2
ERAABME -
REARAZHBERBE
AT HF AR 26K A BR 0 = T BBk

FIREARAR R =FHREREBERSE
ERARBZHBEMME -

AR R R B E
Jinhua Total
R ag

Current R

Cash and cash equivalents BERRLEED

Other current assets ERHEE
(excluding cash) (TEERE)

Total current assets THEELSR

Other current liabilities HRBaR
(including trade payables) (BEEAEZERD)

Total current liabilties THEELR

Non-current FRE

Assets EE

Total non-current assets ERBEERS

Net assets REE

200

ss01

7,914,048 28,266,015

7,914,048 28,266,015
7,903,736 28,241,106

20,351,967

20,351,967
20,337,370
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 19 REEDRTIZ#ER &)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EHBERUE
Waterfront Jinhua Total
KE R fag

Revenue WA
Cost of sales HERAK (TRERE)
(excluding depreciation)
Depreciation and amortisation 7% R &8
Interest income FEWA
Other income A
Selling and distribution expenses  #H& R HHX
Administrative expenses TBR% (19,580)

Loss from continuing operations 1 &&& £ &8

Other comprehensive income ~ Efi2ERA

Total comprehensive loss GEFRAE

Dividends received #AEATRE
from Joint Ventures ZRE
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the LB REREHAEEREE QT ZM
financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for differences HEFTBRERELAENEE QR
in accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures, WEFMEZVNERE - MIEREEEES
and not the Group’s share of those amounts. B o
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERREEEY

Group

rEE
Cash at bank RITRS 20,693,546
Cash on hand FHERS 7,186,930

27,880,476

Maximum exposure to credit risk &A= R bR AR 20,693,546
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash on hand and cash at
bank are denominated in the following currencies:

20 RERBREEEY »©)

AREBFERR S MRITHES ZREEMN
THE¥EE

Group
rEH

RMB

ARE
HK$ BT

BT

9,030,737
18,849,739

27,880,476

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has cash at bank amounting
to HK$9,717,908 (2012: HK$1,844,717), which are denominated
in RMB and held in the PRC. The conversion of RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance
of such foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash
out from the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

R-ZE—=F+_"A=+—H ' K&EEHN
R1TI 4 A9,717,903B L (C 2 — —F ¢
1,844, 717%87T) * UAREERFRF
B - MAREEEHLIBRBINE R I
LAINEHERRITHE R RIR S B H R E
BN+ A BT 8 M B9 FE RE INE B
A ROEMR R o

21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 KA
Company
P N/NE|
Number of
shares Amount
vl 4= ok}
Authorised: JATE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SFREEO0.01E TR
At 1 December 2012, RZFE——F+_-_A—H "
31 December 2012 and —EBE-—F+-A=+—80kK
31 December 2013 —E—=F+-_A=+—H 780,000,000 7,800,000
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21 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

21 BRA &)

Company
AT
Number of
shares Amount
&% & e ot}
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FHXEE0.0178 TTHY
TR
At 1 December 2012, R-TE——F+-H—H:
31 December 2012 and T —F+-_A=+—HEK
1 January 2013 —T—=%—H—H 180,000,001 1,800,001
Conversion of convertible notes (Note) 7, # &] # A& Z= 4% (K 5%) 36,000,000 360,000
Exercise of share options an employee — % {& 2 17 {& B A% 4 500,000 5,000
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+—-A=+—H 216,500,001 2,165,001
Notes: B 5T

The convertible notes was fully converted during the year, an aggregate
of 36,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share.

ZE AR EBEN FAERELH - ptRy
B{EFAR0.85% ;L 31T A $£36,000,0000% B ik

HE0.O1E Tz LB -
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22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT — GROUP AND
COMPANY

Share options are granted to selected employees. The exercise
price of the granted options is equal to the market price of the
shares on the date of the grant. The options are exercisable for
two years from the grant date. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

At 1 January Rn—H—H
Granted B

Exercised BE1T{E

At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=+—8H

All the options were exercisable. Options exercised in 2013
resulted in 500,000 shares (2012: nil) being issued at a weighted
average price of HK$1.822 each. The related weighted average
share price at the time of exercise was HK$1.8 per share.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry date and exercise prices:

22 LRHBERZAR — AEH
RAR ]

BREDETHETRES - EROBREZ
TERESNELERZRNTE - ZFH
PRI AR H B BT M RTTRE - K&
B AR S IE D S A E R R E K
WEBME -

RATERMAAER B R AR T 49771
BHBBHIT -

2012

=
Average
exercise price
in HK$ per
share option
R A
FHITREE
(BRETT)

Options

B e

1.33 900,000

900,000

FABRIES AT - R-F—=FK&7T
MBI BUR N T ERER1.822
78 TC 3 17500,000 & fp (ZZE — 4 -
/) - RITERNRENETIRESS
P1.88 7T °

FRAARTT 2 B E W B B RITE
BT :

Exercise price

in HK$ per Options
share option BB R R
Expiry date BRETHEE 2012
& B H (BRBT) =
20 February 2014 —E—M&E_-_A=+H 1.33 900,000
7 October 2015 —ET—hRF+AtH 1.822 -
900,000
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22

23

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT — GROUP AND 22 LR ABERZAR —&XEH
COMPANY (Continued) RARQT @)
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the FRFE W 2 BRI A E T E
year determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model (2012: BZEABREEERX(CT—=4F :
Trinomial Option Pricing Model) was HK$0.36 (2012: HK$0.25) “IHEHABREEERN)EE AEMNE
per option. The significant inputs into the model were weighted f&#0.368 7L (ZZT— =4 : 0.25/87T) °
average share price of HK$1.822 (2012: HK$1.33) at the grant ZIE A W E R AR A% A B2 i
date, exercise price shown above, volatility of 42% (2012: 48%), FHRRE1.822 L (ZFE—=4F : 1.33%
an expected option life of two years (2012: two years), and an T0) ~ A EFIRATEE - RIE42% (22—
annual risk-free interest rate of 0.34% (2012: 0.42%). The volatility ZF 1 48%) ~ TEHIREREFEHRE (ZF
measured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded —ZF : BF) URERBRFFE0.34%
share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices (ZZF—ZF 1 0.42%) - ARBEERERD
since the Company was listed. Please see Note 7 for the total BRI RERETE ORBIIBBEARR
expenses recognised in profit or loss for share options granted Al EMUARN B ERESRFTONAE - &
to employees. AR TIREEBRENEETERNMAZR
BEHER - B2HEMET -
RESERVES 23 f#f&
Group E
Statutory Share  Available-for- Share-
Share Exchange reserve option  sale security Other holder's Retained
premium reserve (Note (i)) reserve reserve reserve  contributions earnings Total
EERE AfttE
RisE NERE (W)  BRERE REGME bR KRt REEA 4§
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT fon BT fon BT fon BT B AT
At 1 January 2012 WoE-—E-F-B 3030244 1690691 500,000 = - 800 20750004 1474038 83741413
Net proft ERETEE
for the year - - - - - - - 32,871,668 32,871,668
Currency translation differences EMEER - 249,923 - - - - - - 249,923
Falrvalue changes on avallable- 4t HESREE
for-sale financial assets INTWA L) - - - - 178,000 - - - 178,000
Employee share option benefit ESBRERT - - - 224,000 - - - = 224,000
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETHE - - 661,018 - - - = (661,018) =
At 31 December 2012 i3
+-A=1-H 38030244 1940614 1161018 224000 178000 800,410 20751004 46950994 117,265,004
At1 January 2013 R=5-=§-f-R
Net loss for the year EREEER

Currency translation differences EHERZD
Falr valug changes on avallable- Tt EESBEE
for-sale financial assets NFEZES)
Employee share option benefit ESBRERT
Exercise of share options by employees & 217 ERE
Conversion of convertible notes ARTAREE
Transfer to statutory reserve EREEERE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z£
+-A=1-A
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23 RESERVES (Continued) 23 &\ &)

Company AT

Share Available-for-

Share option  sale security Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
e

RoEE  BRERG RERE it ER aE

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2012 R-E—-F-f-H 38,030,244 - - (1,208,809 36,821,435
Loss for the year ENEE - - - (1456,138)  (1,456,134)

Fair value changes on available-for-sale At HESHEEATEZES

financial assets - - 178,000 - 178,000
Employee share option benefit EEERERT — 224,000 = = 224,000
At 31 December 2012 RIE-ZE+ZA=1—H 38,030,244 224,000 178000 (2,664,943 35,767,301

At 1 January 2013 R-ZF-=%-f-H

Loss for the year FREE

Fair value changes on available-for-sale At HESHEENATEZES
financial assets

Employee share option benefi EEERERET

Exercise of share options by employees € 8/7/# B RiE

Conversion of convertible notes RBTRRER

At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-fA=t-H

112

Note (i): In accordance with the relevant regulations and the Article of MEaE (): BIBBRER RASERME - A
association, the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC B 7 R B 5 AR Bk 37 B0 Bt B 2 RIZEAR AR
are required to allocate at least 10% of the after-tax profit B A Bl MOR IR 9 BL & (K 10%H)
according to the PRC accounting standards and regulations BREERNEZE—RECHE - BEEZ
to general statutory reserve until such reserve has reached 50% REEDFMEARNS0% - ZFEBEE
of registered capital. This reserve can only be used for specific AIREEEER - BEZT—=F+
purposes. Appropriation to the general statutory reserve for ZRA=+—HIFE  —EERHE
the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to HK$443,245 R BTN B443,2458 T8 (B ——F ¢
(2012: HK$661,018). 661,018/ L) °

Note (ii): The other reserves represent the difference between the i &E (i) EtREEENEERAR - BABER

nominal value of the issued capital of Legend Strategy Limited,
Lai Ying International Limited and Triple Leaf Limited, the then
shareholders of Legend Strategy Limited and the nominal value
of the 135,000,001 shares issued and allotted to the
shareholders of the above companies by the Company.

ERARRMNEERA R ERHRE
—EERAFZEBITRAAEERL
ARA LA RREETRERE Y
135,000,001 & A% (2 E (B 2 H H =
B o
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24 PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT 24 BBEEEERERRAEE

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords, BEEEFFITNHERZIERK - AEE
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises 1R EAEERZEE/\E T F1& MR
at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy B RBIEHEYZE - HEERBA
agreements in 8 to 10 years. Provision is therefore made for the SEEIE - Atk EHTEAEE B R AN
best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred. SAGERFHEEI TR E - IREEEERK
Movements of provision for asset retirement are as follows: AEHENEBHOT
Group
AEH
2012
—ZE——
HK$
o
At 1 January Rn—H—H 3,278,455
Finance cost on asset retirement WMEEEERERK
obligations (Note 9) B A AS (P 3E9) 160,421
Exchange differences PE 5 =% 18,211
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 3,457,087
Less: non-current portion B FEENEREL S 3,457,087
Current portion BUEAER 55 —
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25 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

25

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured by the rights to
the leased asset. The Group’s motor vehicle amounting to
HK$968,946 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$1,476,100)
would revert to the lessor in the event of default (Note 15).

MEHEAE

MEASEEER EAEHEEENEF
B o WHIREN  AEER T —=
F+ - A=+—H&%4968,946/6 T (=
T— — 4 : 1,476,100/ 7T) Z A E 5 EE O
FHAA (H5E15) o

Group
KEH
2012
—_E—=
HK$
BT
Gross finance lease liabilities — BEHEAFERE —
minimum lease payment IR E 5K
— Not later than 1 year — NHB—F 470,208
— Later than 1 year and no later — BB —FERFEURN
than 5 years 944,011
1,414,219
Future finance charges on finance lease @I EHE - BB E B (112,761)
Present value of finance lease liabilities ~ @& E B ERE 1,301,458
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25 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 25 MEHESE »®

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEHEEENRENT
Group
AEE
2012
=E==
HK$
BT
Not later than 1 year TEBBm—F 412,305
Later than 1 year and no later BE—FERAFUARN
than 5 years 889,153
1,301,458
26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 PR KR H A RE
Group Company
AEE PN

Trade payables FETER SR 2,762,001
Accruals and other payables [E&TIE B &
H b fE T 5B 6,302,788 176,000

9,064,789

176,000
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26 ENRAREMEMNKE @
Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows: FERTTE B REAERIEBLTEIIAT
Group Company
AEE AAF]

Accruals FEETIE B
— Accrued staff costs — EETEIRA 706,385 176,000
— Accrued audit and — EBErEZ R
professional fee BXEH 1,520,000 -
— Accrual effective rental — BEEHES
payable FE 1 5RIR 103,415
Other payables A & 5B
— Other tax payables — HMEHIE 2,086,182 -
— Interest payable — ERFE = =
— Deferred revenue — — BER =S —
membership fee SHEEBH 277,480 -
— Deferred revenue — — B —
customer loyalty =E R
programme E&TEl 110,453 -
— Receipt in advance — JB A 611,322 =
— Others — HAtb 887,551
Other payables H b fE 1< K18 3,972,988
Total accruals and EETIEE &
other payables F A FE S 5K8
B s 6,302,788 176,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables ARE B FERT IR E A FE S 5108 2 BREE
approximate their fair value. BHHENFEESE -
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26 ENRAREMESRIE &

The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: JER BRI BRI DT AT -
Group
rEHE
2012
=E==
HK$
B TT
0-30 days 0&E 30k 940,788
31-60 days 31 260K 702,292
61-90 days 61E2 90K 542,906
Over 90 days B 890K 576,015
2,762,001
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables ARE B FERT IR R E A FE T 58 2 BREE
are denominated in the following currencies: ARSI B EHE -
Group Company

REM RAF

RMB AR & 6,316,205
HK$ BT 2,748,584

9,064,789
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27 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 27 AR EE
Group and Company
KEBRAERAT

2012

===
HKS$
7T
Convertible notes — debt component AR EE — EEHBD 29,405,000
Financial derivatives SRITETA 832,000
30,237,000

The Company issued 36,000,000 5.0% convertible notes
(“convertible notes”) at a consideration of HK$30.6 million on
12 October 2013. The convertible notes will mature two years
from the issue date at 112% of the outstanding principal or can
be converted into shares at the holder’s option anytime at a
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. In addition, the
convertible notes can be early redeemed by the Company
anytime. Early redemption price is the price payable by the
Company at redemption which will make the annualized yield of
the convertible notes at 11% (including accrued interest to be
paid up to date of redemption).

The fair value of the financial derivative includes the Company’s
right to redeem and the holder’s right to convert. In December
2013, the holders of the convertible notes issued notice to convert
and the Company determined not to exercise its right to redeem.
Accordingly, all convertible notes are converted into 36 million of
shares in December 2013 and the carrying value of the convertible
notes is transferred to share capital and share premium.

RZF—=F1TA+=-8B AREURE
30,600,0007% 7T #1736,000,00017 F FI| &
REOEMABBRER ([A]RRER]) -
AR RES R ETBHEFTMERE
Hl > REEZEMABREREBENHARQT]
NAREERSEZ112%ERE - skhRFH
ANBEZRERIRFAR0.858 T 2 A IRE K R
RN o pEAh - AN AR BERS R AR ] A
BEEE - RATERERARARRED
R EATHER - ERZERO A BRERER
FlBEXRR 1% (BRAZEE B HH
FEETFIE) o

ERPTAET ENAFESEARARERD
RERAFFE AR - RZZF—=F
+= 8 TRBRERFH AR DR AT
BATBRRZE - NARPRE N TEHED
¥ o At FTERRBREER_T—=F
+ = A& 536,000,0000% A% 17 AIHAA%
ZEMRMELNEARERRGRE -
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27 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 27 TRRERE ®

R BSIRRR T iR 2 AR R IR VIR IR
THIIEETHE

The convertible notes recognised in the statement of financial
position is calculated as follows:

Group and
Company
REBRAAT
HK$
& TT
Face value of convertible notes issued RZZE—Z—F+ATZHETZ
on 12 October 2012 AHRREEEE 30,600,000
Financial derivatives SRITETAR (832,000)
Less: transactions cost B RBEEA (918,000)
Debt component on initial recognition RZE—Z—F+ATZBIRERZ
at 12 October 2012 BEIEE D 28,850,000
Interest expense (Note 9) B (FizE 9) 890,000
Interest paid/payable Bt/ AR (335,000)
Debt component at 31 December 2012 R_-_Z——F+_A=+—HK
and 1 January 2013 —E—=F—H—BzZEEBEHD 29,405,000
Interest expense (Note 9) FMEFRZ (H:E9) 3,971,164
Interest paid/payable BT EAFLE (1,471,164)
Conversion Hig (31,905,000)

Debt component at 31 December 2013

R_T—=F+_A=+—HAZEBEERD

The debt component has an effective interest rate of 14%.
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 EIEFTBH

The analysis of deferred tax assets is as follows: BEFBEESTAT

120

2012
—EF—=
HK$
BT
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTSHEE ¢
— Deferred income tax assets to be — B 121 A 1& U B K9 3R 3T
recovered after 12 months FMEMEE 1,065,638
— Deferred income tax assets to be — BR121E A A UL e AR E
recovered within 12 months FriSti &= 386,585
1,452,223
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is RAEER - BREFASHEEZLSHNT
as follows:
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions Total
EEBETE BiE g
HK$ HK$ HK$
I BT BT
At 1 January 2012 N—_E——F—H—H 281,557 1,506,708 1,788,265
Credited/(Debited) to profit or loss & A (1 8) B 58,720 (405,222) (346,502)
Exchange differences N ER 1,647 8,813 10,460
At 31 December 2012 RZE—Z%F
+=-—HA=+—H 341,924 1,110,299 1,452,223
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=%—H—H
Debited to profit or loss ERl=EiE
Exchange differences HEHZER
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+—-A=+—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As of 31 December
2013, the Group does not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$1,006,425 (2012: HK$669,516) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$6,099,546 (2012: HK$4,057,673) that can be
carried forward against taxable income. The tax loss can be
carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$1,231,959 (2012: HK$999,263) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that
would be payable on the remitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings
as at 31 December 2013 was HK$24,639,185 (2012:
HK$19,985,253).

w75 BE A 75 7| 25 P RE 28 1B HE 88 oK 2R FE AR A
m HE3E - Bl phpTAs s 2 T IAE B RER
BEEFREMREE R-_TE—=F+-A=
+—B - REE WG] (EA T DK S E
RFULA 2 E5186,009,546/8 L (— T ——
& 4,057,673 L) MRELEHIBE E
1,006,4258 70 (—ZF— —4 : 669,516/5
JC) ° sk i IEESIE A R Al A o

3 4k R B 8 T B A ) 2 & 1 M FE 4
2B REMBIRRERELETIEA R
1,231,959 L (ZZ— —4 : 999,263
BIL) c ZESRBNDKAEBERE o
R-ZE—=F+—"A=+—BRELEFA
24,639,185/ T (ZZF——4 : 19,985,253
ABIT) ©
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29 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNT 29 AATRAMBARZEREEE
TO A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY F—FE ]

Non-current asset EMENE E
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRMD - AR E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B /B R R RN IE (a) 37,507,639
37,507,647
Current asset BN & E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B BB R R RN IE (b) 29,152,653
Current liability mEEE
Amount to a subsidiary B —HERBARRIE (b
(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in HKS$, (a) EWHEBRRRIEIASTEE @ &E
unsecured, interest free and repayable on a date to be mutually - 2B REARES HXFARER B HE
agreed by both parties. E e
()  Amount due from/to subsidiaries are denominated in HKS$, (b) ﬁ’ﬁ”ﬁl/ﬁf‘ﬁ%’&/ﬁjﬁlﬁiﬁbﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 2
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. IR R RBRERMERE
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29 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNT 29 ERARRKBARZEZRE
=, =
TO A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Continued) N — E B B 2 R RRIE ()
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=_RA=+—H ' =ZMNBE
are as follows: REIZFBAT
Place of Date of Issued and fully paid  Attributable Principal
incorporation/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity Principal country of
Name of company establishment establishment registered capital interest activities operation
BRTRAZRE/
Pk HMRY/ HUBE  EREL/RIBH EMER EfERAEE TEER EEBY
Legend Strategy British Virgin 15 December 2010 4 ordinary shares of 100% Investment holding ~ BVI
International Limited Islands (‘BVI") US$1 each (direct)
WABRERAA ERRLES “2-FE+-A+EA BRIFTMAREER (R RARR EREREHS
((EBEXES])
Legend Strategy Limited Hong Kong 28 May 2007 10,000,000 ordinary 100% Investment holding ~ Hong Kong
shares of HK$1 each  (indiirect) and provision of
hotel consultancy
services
WABRAR &k ZEE+ERAZTR BRIETLH (%) RARRR &k
10,000,000 £ FRA I B R R A
Welcome Inn Management Hong Kong 24 October 2011 1 ordinary shares of 100% Provision of hotel  Hong Kong
Limited (Date of acquisition) HK$1 each (indirect) management
services
WREREEERERAR &S “E——£+A-THmA SRIBTMIREER (A% REUEEERRYE &S
(iEH)
Legend Strategy BVI 9 February 2011 1 ordinary share of 100% Rental of hotel Hong Kong
Management Limited US$1 (indirect) premise
EERLES “Z——%ZANA RIFTMIRLER  (F%) BENEHAE b
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Tourists ~ The PRC* 11 December 2006 HK$8,000,000 100% Hotel operations Shenzhen
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
RIRREEREERDA  REN ZEERETZRT-H 8,000,0007% ¢ (%) BESE "l
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists The PRC* 30 May 2008 HK$8,000,000 100% Hotel operations Shenzhen
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
R BHBERERAR ik ZEEN\FRA=TA 8,000,000 (k) BESE i
Shenzhen Modemn Tourists The PRC* 25 April 2008 HK$1,000,000 100% Hotel operations and  Shenzhen
(indirect) provision of hotel
consultancy
services
RNEBERERERAT  E “ZE\FMAZTEH 1,000,000/ ¢ (k) BEEER A
AR IR B R
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn The PRC* 26 November 2008 HKD5,000,000 100% Hotel operations Shenzhen
Co., Ltd. (indirect)
R REEER DA M ZEE\ET-AZF/RA 5000000 (%) BESE el
* Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise * ANEEERE
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30 9oE$€®mTIA

Group rxE
Loans and
receivables
ERREWRRIE
HKS$
PETT
31 December 2013 —E-=F+=-A=+—H
Assets as per statement of financial position SIAB MR RNEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEEY 19,585,536
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments JFEE LAt R R % L A e Wk IE
(T BEERMNFKIE) 12,617,893
Total s 32,203,429
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REHHATHE
Weme s
HK$
BT
31 December 2013 —E-=%+=ZA=+—H
Liabilities as per statement of financial position FIABMBERRERNERE
Finance lease liabilities MEHEBE 858,945
Trade and other payables excluding JE 155 BR 3 R H Ath B A< BOIE
non-financial liabilities (TBEEemas) 8,142,842
Total B 9,001,787
Loans and Available
receivables -for-sale Total
ERREWRRE At E wa
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT PETT
31 December 2012 —E-=F
+=A=+-—H
Assets as per statement of S BRI RN EE
financial position
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJ i HE SR EE — 1,162,000 1,162,000
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeZEEY 27,880,476 - 27,880,476
Trade and other receivables JE U BR R R L i B W SR IR
excluding prepayments (MR IEENFIE) 62,209,153 - 62,209,153
Total s 90,089,629 1,162,000 91,251,629
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30 2 E$®mIEH ®

(Continued)
Group (Continued) NEH (&)
Financial
liabilities at
Financial amortised
Derivatives cost Total
RE AR
ST BREN:
IR EA= =R waE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT ABIT BT
31 December 2012 —B-=F
+=A=+-—H
Liabilities as per statement of JIABMBRARNERS
financial position
Convertible notes — debt AR EE — EEHD
component — 29,405,000 29,405,000
Derivative financial instruments MESRITA 832,000 — 832,000
Finance lease liabilities BEMEAE — 1,301,458 1,301,458
Trade and other payables JE 1 BIR 35 B L A JE < SR IE
excluding non-financial (TEREFermEaRE)
liabilities — 5,169,552 5,169,552
Total g 832,000 35,876,010 36,708,010
Company NN
Loans and
receivables
ERRERRIE
HKS
T
31 December 2013 —E2—=f+=-HA=+-—H
Assets as per statement of financial position SIAM MR RNEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B BB R Rl FNIE 5,370,758
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30
(Continued)

&
&E
K
E:;EI’J_I
H
\

/

%

+t
D)
all
i

Company (Continued)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R AEHE
HEMma s
HK$
7 TT
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-A=+—H
Liabilities as per statement of financial position FIABBERRROEE
Accruals EEtE A 2,883,230
Amount due to a subsidiary e — R B A R FIE 636,900
Total HEE 3,520,130
Loans and Available
receivables -for-sale Total
BEXRRERFRIE AHHE R
HK$ HK$ HK$
AT I BT
31 December 2012 —EB—C-F
+=A=+—H
Assets as per statement of SIAMBARRTROEE
financial position
Available-for-sale financial assets ] it i & € gt & & — 1,162,000 1,162,000
Other receivables H b & U 3R I8 794,902 — 794,902
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y i B A & 7 IE 29,152,653 - 29,152,653
Total #EE 29,947,555 1,162,000 31,109,555
Financial
liabilities at
Financial amortised
Derivatives cost Total
R 8 R
fTE ERELS
g =t sHasE W
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
31 December 2012 —EB——F
+t=A=+—~H
Liabilities as per statement of FIAMBRRTENERS
financial position
Amount due to a subsidiary JES — M B A Rl FI8 — 636,900 636,900
Convertible notes Al A =5
— debt component — BIEH D — 29,405,000 29,405,000
Derivative financial instruments #1444 Ft T B 832,000 — 832,000
Total wzE 832,000 30,041,900 30,873,900
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 REMBRE
2012
—EF——
HK$
BT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSELAT (B518) & F 43,726,938
Adjustments for: RN BIE B
— Depreciation — e 7,959,800
— Amortisation of prepaid — B S
operating lease 850,590
— Finance cost, net — BB A — F5 1,000,868
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment — FEUERE FURE
of trade receivables (B&[E) AR 1,500,000
— Share of results of joint ventures — D hEBRRIZ¥EE 20,870
— Share based payment expenses — DR BER A RFAX 224,000
— Net foreign exchange gain — [N W F 5 —
— Loss on disposal of property, — HEYE - BER
plant and equipment B2 B R =
— Gain on disposal of available-for-sales — HEREHESLREE 2
financial assets Iz —
Operating cash flow before changes EEZESEEHAMLER
in working capital ERE 55,283,066
Changes in working capital: BEESEE)
— Decrease in prepaid operating lease ~ — FENMELHE R/ =
— Decrease/(increase)in trade — FEUBR 3R % H A FE W R IE
and other receivables A (38 an) (21,228,256)
— Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits — FEZ &4 (3 0) (207,220)
— Increase in trade and other payables — — J& /5 BR 7k Kz L b & 45 FXIB 52 hn 800,204
— Decrease in amount due to a director — BN — & EE R IE R (582,031)
— Increase in amounts due from — BUAEE QR FIEE M
joint ventures —
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #X&EL / (FTH)E & 34,065,763
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 K& mMERE ©)

(Continued)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment of LEWHE KBERIKEZFRERE
HK$120,000 was not yet settled and recorded in other 120,000/ T WAL E - Wat AE AU
receivables: A
2012
—=EF——
HK$
Vo
Group rEH
Net book amount REFE =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREEZEE
plant and equipment =
Proceeds from disposal of property, STAHEMER AN HEYE -
plant and equipment recorded 5 % < FTiS 5008
in other receivables —
32 COMMITMENTS 32 EiE
(@) Operating lease commitment (a) REHERIE
The Group leases various hotel premises under non- AN E5 (B A EU{EE JE 4 2 AT 0] B
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms REAEHZERE - HEWHHHH
of the tenancy agreements are set out in Note 24. The REFIRHE24 - HEAKHANE A
leases have escalation clauses and renewal rights. The BMNEGRRRERE - KRB &
future aggregate minimum lease payments are as follows: EHRSWET :
2012
—EF——
HKS
o
No later than 1 year THEBR—F 16,363,076
Later than 1 year and B —FERAFURN
no later than 5 years 54,452,348
Over 5 years BiBAF 77,699,150
148,514,574
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32 COMMITMENTS (continued)

32 &iE ®)

(b) Capital commitment

The Group’s capital expenditure at the end of the reporting
period but not yet incurred is as follows:

(b) EBEAXREE

REFRRERRIT RAELENEAR
AT :

Contracted but not provided for: Bal 4B R B -
— Capital injection to joint ventures

— Property, plant and equipment

—HEERAZEE
o /EN

1,782,590
43,383,844

45,166,434

The Group’s share of capital expenditure of joint ventures
included above is as follows:

AL RZAKBEDHAER
AZEARFEMT

Contracted but not provided for: DET 4B R B
— Property, plant and equipment

— WX -~ BB M&E

4,913,576

The Company has no other material commitments as at
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

33 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE

ARRANGEMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases
as follows:

RZT—=F+=-A=+—H8 &
ARV EHEMEBRAE (T
ﬂf : %]\1\) o

33 RREEHELH

RZZB—=F+_A=+—8  ~A&£ER
TRAIEGEEE R EE T 2 KRBT REAR
W AT :

No later than 1 year B —F
Later than 1 year and no later
than 5 years

Over 5 years HBid A F

HiE—FEREFAN

2,460,479

9,841,914
9,176,375

21,478,768
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34 HAREE

The Group and the Company have no significant contingent RZZE—=F+-A=+—H ' A5EK
liabilities at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). RARUBMERMEALABE(ZZ—Z
F ) o
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BERS
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (“Mr. Fong”) is the single largest shareholder, FXEE([FEED BEERRTAT% 2R
who owns 47% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 53% of B RE—RARRE - B T53% 2R
the shares are widely held. Details of transactions between the REFH - AEBHEBFES 2HANR S
Group and the related parties are as follows. BEHEHINAT o
(a) The Group had the following significant transactions with (a) AFERNAEBEBAEINEAR
the related party during the year: ST ¢
2012
—=EF——
HK$
BIT
Repayment to amount due to EEEN—RBRESHNIA
a director
— Mr. Fong — AEE 582,031
Management fee income ERBIRA
— Waterfront — K =
Expenses paid by the Group AEBREERAZMNHER
on behalf of the joint ventures
— Waterfront — KE _
— Jinhua — REE =
(b) Year-end balances with related parties (b) EHBEELWNFLRER
2012
—EF——
HKS
BT
Amounts due from joint ventures JEUAEE R RIFIE =
Loans to joint ventures REFEERAIZER 22,027,000
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Year-end balances with related parties

(c)

Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. Amount due to a director is
denominated in RMB.

Amounts due from joint ventures are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable by July 2014. Amounts are
denominated in RMB.

Loans to joint ventures are interest free, unsecured and
repayable on a date to be mutually agreed by both parties.
Amounts are denominated in HK$.

Key management compensation

The compensation paid or payable to key management is
as follows:

35

BERXS ®)
(b) HEBESNFEREH

EN—R2EZRELAELR 28
RIRERER - BN —REEHKA
AARBEHE -

EERAEERRRAR/RE ~ EEA
RAR-ZF—NFLAREE - &
FRBUARKEFE -
RUTEERRAZERRRE &
HIRL AR & T KR E 2 B #HE
& o ZHRAAETTEHE ©

(c) FEEEEHRMN

ENSENEREEERMIT

e TENER
RAREEE

Salaries, wages and allowances
Pension obligations
Share-base payment expenses

VAR A7 A5 1 2 5 SR B 2

2,203,452
172,370
44,800

2,420,622

Note: None of the above related party transactions constitutes
continuing connected transaction or connected transaction
of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BisE - RIBLWARRIE14AE - LR
BRI ERAR DR R H R AR
BRXUEERS °
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Summary Financial Information

MBERBE

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2008 was not disclosed as combined financial statements for the Group
have not been prepared for those years. The summary of the combined
results of the Group for each of the two years ended 31 December
2009 and 2010 and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and 2010 has been extracted
from the Company’s listing prospectus dated 30 June 2011. Such
summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group has
been in existence throughout these financial years. The consolidated
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group
as at 31 December 2013 are those set out in the audited financial
statements.

RESULTS
Revenue W&
Profit/(loss) before tax BRAER/ (B8)
Income tax expense FEBAY
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BR)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company KDAEEA

Non-controlling interests JEE e A

HRAEEREE_SELFR_ET \F+
A=+ HIEFEVYERRE MM ERE
MW EEEZEFENMEER - AEEEHE
TEENFR_FEZEF+ A=+ —HIM™
EFESFNAHEEREURAEBRR-Z
TNFR-_E—ZTF+-_A=+—HHEE
AERIEZES R RS AR FTR T —
—FRNA=THTEN ETHRRER - Z25H
ERBEASEBNAEEBNZETHRTEN
—EFENBEMERE - AEEHE—ZT—=
F+- A=+ —HIEFENGEFERAER
R-BE—=F+_"A=1+—BNEGEAEE 8
BRIEEH e B BRI ERE -

ES

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t-HLEFE

2012 2011 2010 2009
“E-2fF ZE--% CE-TF C-TENF
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT
91,155,199 69,592,354 32,317,933 19,545,963
43,726,938 28,852,083 13,522,667 (3,385,339
(10,855,270)  (7,587,350)  (3,973,136) (91,480)
32,871,668 21,264,683 9,549,531 (3,476,819
32,871,668 21,264,683  9,185202  (3,187,896)
- - 364,329 (288,923)
32,871,668 21,264,683 9,549,531 (3,476,819
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MBERBE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥E - EERFEHIMER

INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2012 2011 2010 2009
“E--F —Z--Ff ZZ-FF _TETNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT o BT
Total assets BELT 176,160,788 107,146,344 31,597,999 32,873,140
Total liabilities BEEE (57,095,783) (21,604,930) (16,312,883) (45,037,344)
Non-controlling interests JEE | RS = = - (2,393,525)

119,065,005 85,541,414 15,285,116  (14,557,729)

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial i EW T EXKSERRERR 2 — 50 -
statements.
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